
Licensing Sub-Committee

Monday 12 June 2017
10.00 am

Ground Floor Meeting Room G02C - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Membership Reserves

Councillor Renata Hamvas (Chair)
Councillor Lorraine Lauder MBE
Councillor Maria Linforth-Hall

Councillor Sandra Rhule

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information
You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as 
well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.
Babysitting/Carers allowances
If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an 
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, 
you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the meeting.
Access
The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building 
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.
Contact
Andrew Weir on 020 7525 7222 or email: andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk    

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting
Eleanor Kelly
Chief Executive
Date: 2 June 2017

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk


Licensing Sub-Committee
Monday 12 June 2017

10.00 am
Ground Floor Meeting Room G02C - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.

PART A - OPEN BUSINESS

1. APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. CONFIRMATION OF VOTING MEMBERS

A representative of each political group will confirm the voting members of 
the committee.

3. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
DEEMS URGENT

In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an agenda 
within five clear days of the meeting.

4. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members to declare any interests and dispensation in respect of any item 
of business to be considered at this meeting.

5. LICENSING ACT 2003: ZIA LUCIA, 35-37 TOWER BRIDGE ROAD, 
LONDON SE1 4TL

1 - 54

6. LICENSING ACT 2003: BEST FOOD & WINE, 171 QUEENS ROAD, 
LONDON SE15 2ND - TRANSFER APPLICATION

55 - 149

7. LICENSING ACT 2003: BEST FOOD AND WINE, 171 QUEENS ROAD, 
LONDON SE15 2ND - REVIEW

150 - 238



Item No. Title Page No.

ANY OTHER OPEN BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START OF THE 
MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.

PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the 
sub-committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports 
revealing exempt information:

“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items 
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1-7, Access to 
Information Procedure rules of the Constitution.”

ANY OTHER CLOSED BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START OF 
THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.

Date:  2 June 2017



Item No. 
5.

Classification:
Open

Date:
12 June 2017

Meeting Name:
Licensing sub-committee

Report Title Licensing Act 2003: Zia Lucia, 35-37 Tower Bridge 
Road, London SE1 4TL

Ward(s) of group(s) affected Chaucer 

From Strategic Director of Environment and Social 
Regeneration

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That the licensing sub-committee considers an application made by Zia Lucia 2 Limited 
for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of the 
premises known as Zia Lucia, 35-37 Tower Bridge Road, London SE1 4TL.

2. Notes:

a) This application forms a new application for a premises licence, submitted under 
Section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003. The application is subject to representations 
from responsible authorities and is therefore referred to the sub-committee for 
determination.

b) Paragraphs 8 to 11 of this report provide a summary of the application under 
consideration by the sub-committee. A copy of the full application is attached as 
Appendix A.

c) Paragraphs 12 to 16 of this report deal with the representations submitted in 
respect of the application. Copies of the representations submitted responsible 
authorities (and subsequently withdrawn) are attached to this report in Appendix 
B. Representations from other persons are attached at Appendix C. A map 
showing the location of the premises is attached to this report as Appendix D.

d) A copy of the council’s approved procedure for hearings of the sub-committee in 
relation to an application made under the Licensing Act 2003, along with a copy of 
the hearing regulations, has been circulated to all parties to the meeting. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Licensing Act 2003

3. The Licensing Act 2003  provides a licensing regime for:

 The sale of and supply of alcohol
 The provision of regulated entertainment
 The provision of late night refreshment.

4. Within Southwark, the licensing responsibility is wholly administered by this council.

5. The Act requires the licensing authority to carry out its functions under the Act with a 
view to promoting the four stated licensing objectives. These are:

1
Agenda Item 5



 The prevention of crime and disorder
 The promotion of public safety
 The prevention of nuisance
 The protection of children from harm.

6. In carrying out its licensing functions, a licensing authority must also have regard to:

 The Act itself
 The guidance to the act issued under Section 182 of the Act
 Secondary regulations issued under the Act
 The licensing authority’s own statement of licensing policy
 The application, including the operating schedule submitted as part of the 

application
 Relevant representations.

7. The premises licence application process involves the provision of all relevant 
information required under the Act to the licensing authority with copies provided by the 
applicant to the relevant responsible bodies under the Act. The application must also be 
advertised at the premises and in the local press. The responsible authorities and other 
persons within the local community may make representations on any part of the 
application where relevant to the four licensing objectives.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

The premises licence application

8. On 5 April 2017 Zia Lucia 2 Limited applied to this council for the grant of a premises 
licence in respect of Zia Lucia, 35-37 Tower Bridge Road, London SE1 4TL. The 
premises are described in the application as being ‘a high-class restaurant selling 
pizzas’. 

9. The application and is summarised as follows: 

 The supply by retail of alcohol (on sales only): Monday to Sunday from 11:00 to 
23:00

 The provision of regulated entertainment in the form of recorded music (indoors): 
Monday to Sunday from 11:00 to 23:00

 Opening hours: Monday to Sunday from 11:00 to 23:00.

10. The proposed designated premises supervisor of the premises is Alessio Locci who 
has been granted a personal licence by London Borough of Islington. 

11. The premises licence application form provides the applicant’s operating schedule. 
Parts A, B, C, E, F, G, H, I, J, K, L, and M of the operating schedule set out the 
proposed licensable activities, operating hours and operating control measures in full, 
with reference to the four licensing objectives as stated in the Licensing Act 2003. 
Should a premises licence be issued in respect of the application the information 
provided in part M of the operating schedule will form the basis of conditions that will be 
attached to any licence granted subsequent to the application. A copy of the application 
is attached to this report in Appendix A. 

2



Representations from responsible authorities

12. Representations were initially submitted by the Metropolitan Police (Licensing Division) 
and this council’s trading standards authority.  Both representations have subsequently 
been withdrawn through conciliation.

13. The Metropolitan Police Service’s representation requested additional conditions, 
namely:

1. Persons shall not be permitted to leave the premises with alcohol sealed or 
unsealed.

2. Intoxicating liquor shall not be sold or supplied on the premises other than to 
persons having table meals and is for consumption by such person as an 
ancillary to this food .

3. The supply of alcohol will cease at least 30 minutes prior to the terminal hour as 
detailed on the premises licence.

The applicant agreed to these conditions. In Appendix B, there is a copy of the initial 
representation, the response from the applicant and the Police’s withdrawal.

14. The representation from trading standards also asked for additional conditions, namely:

1. That a challenge 25 scheme shall be maintained at the premises requiring that 
staff selling alcohol request that any customer who looks under 25 years old, and 
who is attempting to purchase alcohol, provides valid photographic identification 
proving that the customer is at least 18 years old. Valid photographic 
identification is composed of a driving licence, passport, UK armed services ID 
card and any Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) accredited card such as 
the Proof of Age London (PAL) card.

2. That all staff involved in the sale of alcohol shall be trained in the prevention of 
sales of alcohol to underage persons, and the challenge 25 scheme in operation 
at the premises. A record of such training shall be kept / be accessible at the 
premises at all times and be made immediately available for inspection at the 
premises to council or police officers on request. The training record shall include 
the trainee’s name (in block capitals), the trainer’s name (in block capitals), the 
signature of the trainee, the signature of the trainer, the date(s) of training and a 
declaration that the training has been received.

3. That clearly legible signs shall be prominently displayed where they can easily be 
seen and read by customers stating to the effect that a challenge 25 policy is in 
operation at the premises, that customers may be asked to provide proof of age 
and stating what the acceptable forms of proof of age are. Such signage shall be 
displayed at all entrances, points of sale and in all areas where alcohol is 
displayed for sale. The signage shall be kept free from obstructions at all times.

4. That a register of refused sales of alcohol shall be maintained in order to 
demonstrate effective operation of the challenge 25 policy. The register shall be 
clearly and legibly marked on the front cover as a register of refused sales, with 
the address of the premises and with the name and address of the licence holder. 
The register shall be kept/be accessible at the premises at all times. On a 
monthly basis, the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) shall check the 

3



register to ensure it is being properly completed. The DPS shall sign and date the 
register to that effect and where appropriate take corrective action in a timely 
manner if the register is not being completed correctly. The register shall be 
made immediately available for inspection at the premises to council or police 
officers on request.

5. That any children must be accompanied and supervised by a responsible adult.

15. The applicant agreed to these conditions.  In the latter half of Appendix B, there is a 
copy of the initial representation, the response from the applicant and subsequent 
withdrawal confirmation.

Representations from other persons

16. Representations have been received from six other persons. The concerns surround 
the proximity of the premises to residential properties and the potential for associated 
nuisance with a licensed premises, including noise and noxious smells. There is 
concern regarding the late-night operation of the premises that could potentially disturb 
local children. There are further apprehensions of the applicant’s intended use of the 
outside areas. These representations are available in Appendix C.

Conciliation

17. The applicant was sent copies of the representations that were submitted. The 
conditions required by the responsible authorities were agreed to. The applicant’s agent 
composed a letter to objecting other persons for the council to send on to them.  At the 
time this report was composed, that correspondence has been sent out, but no 
responses had been received.  A copy of that letter sits at the end of Appendix C.

Premises history

18. The premises previously operated as an off licence. This licence was surrendered in 
February 2011.  It has remained unlicensed since that time. 

Deregulation of entertainment

19. It is noted that the applicant has applied for regulated entertainment in the form of 
recorded music, which the application describes as being ‘background’. On 6 April 2015 
entertainment became deregulated and as a result: 

 Live unamplified music is deregulated between 08:00 and 23:00 on any       
premises.

 Live amplified music is deregulated between 08:00 and 23:00 at on-licensed 
premises provided the audience does not exceed 500 people, however, live 
music can become licensable in on-licensed premises if the licensing authority 
removes the effect of the deregulation following a licence review (‘licence review 
mechanism’).

Map

20. A map showing the location of the premises is attached to this report as Appendix D. 
The following licensed premises are in the immediate vicinity of the premises 
application:

4



Tower Wines, 33 Tower Bridge Road, London SE1 4TR licenced for:

 The sale of alcohol (off sales): Monday to Saturday from 08:00 to 23:00 and 
Sunday from 10:00 to 22:30.

El Patacon, 16 Tower Bridge Road, London, SE1 4TR licensed for:

 The sale of alcohol (on sales): Monday to Friday from 11:00 to 23:30 and 
Saturday and Sunday from 11:00 to 01:30 (the following day)

 The provision of late night refreshment (indoors): Monday to Thursday from 23:00 
to 23:30 and Friday to Sunday from 23:00 to 01:30 (the following day).

The George, 40 Tower Bridge Road, London SE1 4TR licensed for:

 The sale by retail of alcohol (on and off sales): Monday to Saturday from 10:00 to 
01:00 (the following day) and Sunday from 12:00 to 01:00 (the following day)

 The provision of late night refreshment (indoors): Sunday to Tuesday from 23:00 
to 01:00 (the following day) and Wednesday to Saturday from 23:00 to 01:30 (the 
following day)

 The provision of regulated entertainment in the form of live music, recorded 
music and performances of dance (indoors): Monday to Saturday from 11:00 to 
01:30 (the following day) and Sunday from 12:00 to 01:00 (the following day).

The Other Room, Unit 6, 60 Brighton Buildings, London SE1 4TR licenced for:

 The sale by retail of alcohol (on and off sales): Monday to Sunday from 07:00 to 
00:00 (midnight)

 The provision of regulated entertainment in the form of films, live music, recorded 
music and performances of dance (indoors): Monday to Sunday from 07:00 to 
00:00 (midnight)

 The provision of late night refreshment (indoors): Sunday to Tuesday from 23:00 
to 00:00 (midnight).

Ava Café. 61 Tower Bridge Road, London SE1 4TR licensed for:

 The sale by retail of alcohol (on sales only) Monday to Saturday from 12:00 to 
23:30 and Sunday from 12:00 to 20:30.

Costcutter Supermarket – 65 Tower Bridge Road, London SE1 4TL licensed for:

 The sale by retail of alcohol (off sales only): Monday to Sunday, 24 hours.

Tesco – 67-69 Tower Bridge Road, London SE1 4TN licensed for:

 The sale by retail of alcohol (off sales only): Monday to Sunday from 06:00 to 
23:00.

Hassan Brothers Steak and Kebab – 73 Tower Bridge Road, London SE1 4TW 
licenced for:

5



 The sale by retail of alcohol (on sales): Monday to Saturday from 11:00 to 23:00

 The provision of late night refreshment (indoors): Monday to Thursday from 23:00 
to 00:30 (the following day) and Friday and Saturday from 23:00 to 01:00 (the 
following day).

Southwark council statement of licensing policy

21. Council assembly approved Southwark’s statement of licensing policy 2016-20 on 25 
November 2015. The policy came into effect on 1 January 2016. Sections of the 
statement that are considered to be of particular relevance to the sub-committee’s 
consideration are:

 Section 3 - Purpose and scope of the policy. This reinforces the four licensing 
objectives and the fundamental principles upon which this authority relies in 
determining licence applications.

 Section 5 - Determining applications for premises licences and club premises 
certificates. This explains how the policy works and considers issues such as 
location; high standards of management; and the principles behind condition 
setting.

 Section 6 - Local cumulative impact policies. This sets out this authority’s 
approach to cumulative impact and defines the boundaries of the current special 
policy areas and the classifications of premises to which they apply. To be read 
in conjunction with Appendix B to the policy.

 Section 7 - Hours of operation. This provides a guide to the hours of licensed 
operation that this authority might consider appropriate by type of premises and 
(planning) area classification.

 Section 8 - The prevention of crime and disorder. This provides general guidance 
on the promotion of the first licensing objective.

 Section 9 - Public safety. This provides general guidance on the promotion of the 
second licensing objective.

 Section 10 - The prevention of nuisance. This provides general guidance on the 
promotion of the third licensing objective.

 Section 11 - The protection of children from harm. This provides general 
guidance on the promotion of the fourth licensing objective.

22. The purpose of Southwark’s statement of licensing policy is to make clear to applicants 
what considerations will be taken into account when determining applications and 
should act as a guide to the sub-committee when considering the applications. 
However, the sub-committee must always consider each application on its own merits 
and allow exceptions to the normal policy where these are justified by the 
circumstances of the application.

23. Within Southwark’s statement of licensing policy, the premises are identified as being 
outside of a cumulative impact zone and as situated within a residential area. Relevant 

6



closing times recommended in the statement of licensing policy for licensed premises in 
residential areas are as follows:

 Restaurants, pubs, cafes, wine bars, theatres and cinemas: Monday to Sunday 
until 23:00.

Resource implications

24. A fee of £190.00 has been paid by the applicant company in respect of this application 
being the statutory fee payable for premises within non-domestic rateable value bands 
D/E. 

Consultation

25. Consultation has been carried out on this application in accordance with the provisions 
of the Licensing Act 2003. A public notice was published in a local newspaper and 
similar notices were exhibited outside of the premises for a period of 28 consecutive 
days.

Community impact statement

26. Each application is required by law to be considered upon its own individual merits with 
all relevant matters taken into account.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy

27. The sub-committee is asked to determine the application for a premises licence under 
section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

28. The principles which sub-committee members must apply are set out below.

Principles for making the determination

29. The general principle is that applications for premises licence applications must be 
granted unless relevant representations are received. This is subject to the proviso that 
the applicant has complied with regulations in advertising and submitting the 
application.

30. Relevant representations are those which:

 Are about the likely effect of the granting of the application on the promotion 
of the licensing objectives

 Are made by an interested party or responsible authority
 Have not been withdrawn
 Are not, in the opinion of the relevant licensing authority, frivolous or vexatious

31. If relevant representations are received then the sub-committee must have regard to 
them, in determining whether it is necessary for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives to:

 To grant the licence subject to:

7



o The conditions mentioned in section 18 (2)(a) modified to such extent as the 
licensing authority considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives

o Any condition which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the licence

 To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which 
the application relates

 To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor
 To reject the application.

Conditions

32. The sub-committee’s discretion is thus limited. It can only modify the conditions put 
forward by the applicant, or refuse the application, if it is necessary to do so. Conditions 
must be necessary and proportionate for the promotion of one of the four licensing 
objectives, and not for any other reason. Conditions must also be within the control of 
the licensee, and should be worded in a way which is clear, certain, consistent and 
enforceable.

33. The four licensing objectives are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 Public safety
 The prevention of nuisance
 The protection of children from harm.

34. Members should note that each objective is of equal importance. There are no other 
licensing objectives, and the four objectives are paramount considerations at all times.

35. Conditions will not be necessary if they duplicate a statutory position. Conditions 
relating to night café and take away aspect of the license must relate to the night time 
operation of the premises and must not be used to impose conditions which could not 
be imposed on day time operators.

36. Members are also referred to the Home Office Revised Guidance issued under section 
182 of the Licensing Act 2003 on conditions, specifically section 10.

Reasons

37. If the sub-committee determines that it is necessary to modify the conditions, or to 
refuse the application for a premises licence application, it must give reasons for its 
decision.

Hearing procedures

38. Subject to the licensing hearing regulations, the licensing committee may determine its 
own procedures. Key elements of the regulations are that:

 The hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority. Cross 
examination shall not be permitted unless the authority considered that it is 
required for it to consider the representations.

 Members of the authority are free to ask any question of any party or other 
person appearing at the hearing.

8



 The committee must allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in which 
to exercise their rights to:

o Address the authority
o If given permission by the committee, question any other party.
o In response to a point which the authority has given notice it will require 

clarification, give further information in support of their application.

 The committee shall disregard any information given by a party which is not 
relevant to the particular application before the committee and the licensing 
objectives.

 The hearing shall be in public, although the committee may exclude the public 
from all or part of a hearing where it considers that the public interest in doing so 
outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking 
place in private.

 In considering any representations or notice made by a party the authority may 
take into account documentary or other information produced by a party in 
support of their application, representations or notice (as applicable) either before 
the hearing or, with the consent of all the other parties, at the hearing.

39. This matter relates to the determination of an application for a premises licence under 
section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003. Regulation 26(1) (a) requires the sub-committee 
to make its determination at the conclusion of the hearing.

Council’s multiple roles and the role of the licensing sub-committee

40. Sub-committee members will note that, in relation to this application, the council has 
multiple roles. Council officers from various departments have been asked to consider 
the application from the perspective of the council as authority responsible respectively 
for environmental health, trading standards, health and safety and as the planning 
authority.

41. Members should note that the licensing sub-committee is meeting on this occasion 
solely to perform the role of licensing authority. The sub-committee sits in quasi-judicial 
capacity, and must act impartially. It must offer a fair and unbiased hearing of the 
application. In this case, members should disregard the council’s broader policy 
objectives and role as statutory authority in other contexts. Members must direct 
themselves to making a determination solely based upon the licensing law, guidance 
and the council’s statement of licensing policy.

42. As a quasi-judicial body the licensing sub-committee is required to consider the 
application on its merits. The sub-committee must take into account only relevant 
factors, and ignore irrelevant factors. The decision must be based on evidence, that is 
to say material, which tends logically to show the existence or non-existence of relevant 
facts, or the likelihood or unlikelihood of the occurrence of some future event, the 
occurrence of which would be relevant. The licensing sub-committee must give fair 
consideration to the contentions of all persons entitled to make representations to them.

43. The licensing sub-committee is entitled to consider events outside of the premises if 
they are relevant, i.e. are properly attributable to the premises being open. The 
proprietors do not have to be personally responsible for the incidents for the same to be 

9



relevant.  However, if such events are not properly attributable to the premises being 
open, then the evidence is not relevant and should be excluded.  Guidance is that the 
licensing authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities taking place 
at the licensed premises on members of the public, living, working or engaged in 
normal activity in the area concerned.

44. Members will be aware of the council’s code of conduct which requires them to declare 
personal and prejudicial interests. The code applies to members when considering 
licensing applications. In addition, as a quasi-judicial body, members are required to 
avoid both actual bias, and the appearance of bias.

The sub-committee can only consider matters within the application that have been 
raised through representations from other persons and responsible authorities. Other 
persons must live in the vicinity of the premises. This will be decided on a case to case 
basis.

45. Under the Human Rights Act 1998, the sub-committee needs to consider the balance 
between the rights of the applicant and those making representations to the application 
when making their decision. The sub-committee has a duty under section 17 Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 when making its decision to do all it can to prevent crime and 
disorder in the borough.

46. Other persons, responsible authorities and the applicant have the right to appeal the 
decision of the sub-committee to the magistrates’ court within a period of 21 days 
beginning with the day on which the applicant was notified by the licensing authority of 
the decision to be appealed against.

Guidance

47. Members are required to have regard to the Home Office Revised Guidance in carrying 
out the functions of licensing authority. However, guidance does not cover every 
possible situation, so long as the guidance has been properly and carefully understood, 
members may depart from it if they have reason to do so.  Full reasons must be given if 
this is the case.

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

48. The head of community safety and enforcement has confirmed that the costs of this 
process are borne by the service.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

 Background Papers  Held At  Contact
 Licensing Act 2003
 Home Office Revised Guidance to  
 the Act
 Secondary Regulations
 Southwark statement of licensing 
 Policy Case file

 Southwark Licensing, c/o 
 Community Safety and
 Enforcement, 
160 Tooley Street
London 
 SE1 2QH

 Kirty Read
T         Tel: 020 7525 5748

10



APPENDICES

 Name  Title
 Appendix A  Application for a  premises licence 
 Appendix B  Conciliated representations submitted by responsible authorities 
 Appendix C  Representations submitted by other persons
 Appendix D  Map of the local area

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Deborah Collins, Strategic Director of Environment and Social 
Regeneration

Report Author Andrew Heron, Principal Licensing Officer
Version Final

Dated 12 May 2017
Key Decision? No

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 
MEMBER

Officer Title Comments sought Comments included
Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance

Yes Yes

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 12 May 2017

11



APPENDIX A
Business -Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 

05/04/2017 
Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 
Ref No. 795069 

Name of Applicant 

Please enter the name(s) who is applying for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 
and am m~king this application to you as the relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 

I Zia Lucia 2 Limited 

Premises Details 

Non-domestic rateable value of premises in order to see your rateable value click here (opens in new window) 

£ 29500 

Band D and E only applies to premises which uses exclusively or primarily for the 
supply of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises 

No 

Premises trading name 

I Zia Lucia 

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

Address Line 1 35-37 TOWER BRIDGE ROAD 

Address Line 2 

Town LONDON 

County 

Post code SE1 4TL 

Ordnance survey 
map reference 

Description of the 
location 

Telephone number 02079521721 

Applicant Details 

Please select the capacity in which you are applying to convert your existing licence 

I a person other than an individual (limited company, partnership, etc) 

12



Business -Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 

If you applying as an individual or non-individual please select one of the following:-

Other Applicants 

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the 
<br>premises for licensable activities 

Personal Details - First Entry 

I Name I Zia Lucia 2 Limited 

Address - First Entry 

Street number or 26 
building name 

Street Description Curtain Road 

Town London 

County 

Post code EC2A 3NY 

Registered number ( 
where applicable ) 

10638976 

Description of 
applicant ( for 
example, 

Limited Company 

partnership, 
company, 
unincorporated 
association etc ) 

Contact Details - First Entry 

Telephone number (020) 79521721 

Email address mbuckworth@buckworths.com 

Operating Schedule 

When do you want the premises licence to start? 

1 o1to5t2017 

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, when do you want it to end? 

General description of premises ( see guidance note 1 ) 

13



Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 

The premises is the ground floor of a property opening onto Tower Bridge Road. The 
frontage of the property is made up of glass windows with a glass door. The inside of 
the premises is open plan with a closed kitchen and toilet area in the middle of the 
floorpan and a further dining area at the rear of the premises. Please see enclosed 
plans for further details of the layout of the premises. 

The business operating from the premises will be a high class restaurant selling pizzas. 

There are residential premises both in the building in which the restaurant will operate 
and in the immediate vicinity. The applicant is very aware of the need to ensure that 
residential premises are not disturbed. (Further details is provided on this herein). 

Tower Bridge Road has significant parking restrictions in place including a red route. 
The applicant is very aware of the need to ensure that no disruption is made to traffic 
flow in the area and does not consider that this application will impact on the flow of 
traffic. 

Please select the range of the number of people expected to attend the premises at any one time. 

Less than 5000 

If 5,000 or more N/A 
people are expected 
to attend the 
premises at any one 
time. Please state 
the number 
expected to attend 

Operating Schedule part 2 

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises? 

(Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 and schedule 1 and 2 to the 
Licensing Act 2003) · 

Provision of regulated entertainment 

f) recorded music 

Provision of late night refreshment 

14



Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensi.ng Act 2003 

Supply of alcohol 

I j) Supply of alcohol 

F -·Recorded Music 

Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors or outdoors or both? ( Please read guidance note 2 ) 

Indoors 

Please give further details here ( Please read guidance note 3 ) 

The applicant intends for low level background music to be played during business 
hours. This will be maintained at a level that does not disturb neighbours and is not 
capable of being heard from outside the premises. 

Standard days and timings for Recorded Music ( Please read guidance note 6 ) 

Day Start Finish 

Man 11:00 23:00 

Tues 11:00 23:00 

Wed 11:00 23:00 

Thur 11 :00 23:00 

Fri 11:00 ' 23:00 

Sat 11:00 23:00 

Sun 11:00 23:00 

State any seasonal variations for playing recorded music ( Please read guidance note 4 ) 

N/A 

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the playing of recorded music entertainment 
at different times to those listed. (Please read guidance note 5 ) 

N/A 

J - Supply of Alcohol 

Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption ( Please read guidance note 7 ) 

I On the premises 

Standard days and timings for Supply of alcohol ( Please read guidance note 6 ) 

15



Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 

Day Start Finish 

Mon 11:00 23:00 

Tues 11:00 23:00 

Wed 11:00 23:00 

Thur 11 :00 23:00 

Fri 11 :00 23:00 

Sat 11 :00 23:00 

Sun 11 :00 23:00 

State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol ( Please read guidance 4 ) 

N/A 

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the supply of alcohol at different times to 
those listed. Please list, ( Please read guidance note 5 ) 

N/A 

Please upload the consent form completed by the proposed premises supervisor 

I Consent-Form.pdf 

Premises Supervisor 

Full name of proposed designated premises supervisor 

I First names 

Surname 

Address of proposed designated premises supervisor · 

Street number or  
Building name 

Street Description  

Town London 

County 

Post code  

Personal licence number of proposed designated premises supervisor, if any, 

Personal licence  
number ( if known ) 

Issuing authority ( if Islington 

16



Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 

known) 

K 

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the 
use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children ( Please read guidance note 8 ) 

I This is not applicable 

L - Hours premises are open to public 

Hours premises are open to the public ( standard timings Please read guidance note 6 ) 

Day Start Finish 

Mon 

lues 

Wed 

Thur 

Fri 

Sat 

Sun 

State any seasonal variations ( Please read guidance note 4 ) 

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the public at different times from 
those listed. Please list, ( Please read guidance note .5 ) 

M - Steps to promote four licencing objectives 

a) General- all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e) (Please read guidance note 9) 

The premises is intended to be a high end family pizza restaurant. It would be deeply 
prejudicial to the applicant's business for any of the licensing objectives to be blocked. 
To this end, the management will ensure that the four licensing objectives are met as 
detailed below. 

The management will co-operate with the police and licensing authority to ensure that 
the licensing objectives are met and that the business operated at the premises 
contributes to the local community in a positive manner. 

Management will ensure that all staff are trained in current applicable licensing law and 
are aware of the obligations of the applic~nt with regards to compliance with its 
licensing obligations. 

17



l:jUSiness - Application tor a prem1ses licence to oe grantea unaer tne Ltcensmg Act <!UU::J 

I known) 

K 

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the 
use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children ( Please read guidance note 8 ) 

I This Is not applicable 

L - Hours premises are open to public 

Hours premises are open to the public ( standard timings Please read guidance note 6 ) 

Day Start Finish 

Mon ll AM. \\PM.. 
rues II k.M.. \lPM 
Wed \l f'\M.._ \ lWv\. 
Thur \\~ llPM 
Frl ~\~ \ l V.M-
Sat ~t~ _\t_QM_ 
Sun t \ f\iv\_ l\ f~ 

State any seasonal variations ( Please read guidance note 4 ) 

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the public at different times from 
those listed. Please list, (Please read guidance note 5) 

M - Steps to promote four licencing objectives 

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e) ( Please read guidance note 9) 

The premises Is Intended to be a high end family pizza restaurant. It would be deeply 
prejudicial to the applicant's business for any of the licensing objectives to be blocked. 
To this end, the management will ensure that the four licensing objectives are met as 
detailed below. 

The management will co-operate with the pollee and licensing authority to ensure that 
the licensing objectives are met and that the business operated at the premises 
contributes to the local community In a positive manner. 

Management will ensure that all staff are trained In current applicable licensing law and 
are aware of the obligations of the applicant with regards to compliance with its 
licensing obligations. 

18



Business -Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 

b) the prevention of crime and disorder 

c) public safety 

The management takes its obligation to prevent crime and disorder seriously. To this 
end, the management will: 
(i) install CCTV and ensure that it i? maintained in an operational state. The CCTV will 
cover all customer areas inside and directly outside the front of the premises. CCTV will 
operate at all times when the premises remain open and images will be captured and 
recorded on site. Images will be accessible to the manager at all times if required. 
Recordings will be of a suitable quality to identify individuals and will be retained for 3 
months. 
(ii) co-operate with the police and licensing authority including providing copies of any 
recordings within 48 hours of a request being made. 
(iii) place notices at the entrance to the premises and in prominent positions throughout 
the premises advising that CCTV is in operation; 
(iv) ensure that a minimum of 2 members of staff will be present at all times whilst the 
premises remain open; 
(v) pro-actively monitor alcohol consumption and refuse to serve customers who are 
showing signs of drunkenness or antisocial behaviour; and 
(vi) maintain an incident log containing details of any incidents. This incident log will be 
available to the police on demand. 

The management does not expect an issue with drug usage as the business is a 
family-friendly restaurant not a bar. Nevertheless, the restaurant will operate a zero 
tolerance approach to drug usage on the premises. 

The management will work closely with the police to deal with any criminal or 
anti-social behaviour. 

The management takes its obligation to ensure the safety of the public (both customers 
and people passing by the premises) seriously. To this end, management will: 

(i) install CCTV and ensure that it is maintained in an operational state. The CCTV will 
cover all customer areas inside and directly outside the front of the premises. CCTV will 
operate at all times when the premises remain open and images will be captured and 
recorded on site. Images will be accessible to the manager at all times if required. 
Recordings will be of a suitable quality to identify individuals and will be retained for 3 
months; 
(ii) co-operate with the police and licensing authority including providing copies of any 
recordings within 48 hours of a request being made; 
(iii) not permit customers to take glass outside after 1 Opm and will pro-actively monitor 
any instructions to the pavement caused by customers gathering outside or smoking 
outside; 
(iv) ensure that fire exits are clearly marked and that access to fire exits are kept clear, 
unobstructed and immediately available; and 
(v) ensure that all staff members are trained in the evacuation policy (which will be 
agreed with the Fire Authority). 

d) the prevention of public nuisance · 

The management takes its obligation to prevent nuisance to the public seriously. To 
this end the management will: 
(i) ensure that the restaurant closes at 11 pm each night' 
(ii) pro-actively ensure that customers are encouraged to leave the premises quietly; 
(iii) place notices in prominent positions at exist to remind customers to respect 
residential neighbours and keep noise to a minimum; 
(iv) pro-actively monitor the state of customers and refuse to serve customers who 
appear to be drunk and/or likely to cause a nuisance; 
(v) provide and maintain bins outside the premises; 
(vi) ensure that any litter is removed from outside the premises during all hours during 
which the premises are open and ensure that such litter is disposed of with other waste 
from the premises; 

19



Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 

(vii) ensure that delivery drivers do not obstruct the roads and/or park or stop illegally. 
In particular, management will ensure that the traffic rules in respect of Tower Bridge 
Road are complied with by delivery drivers and will be pro-active about insisting on 
compliance. 

e) the protection of children from harm 

The management takes its obligations to protect children from harm seriously. To this 
end, the management will : 
(i) operate a clear challenge 25 policy meaning that any customers looking under 25 
will be asked for ID prior the sale of alcohol; 
(ii) not serve alcohol to children and will proOactively take steps to ensure that adults do 
not buy children alcohol; and 
(iii) not permit unaccompanied children to use the restaurant. 

Please upload a plan of the premises 

I 0012-A2100-PROPOSED.pdf 

Please upload any additional information i.e. risk assessments 

Checklist 

Declaration 

I have enclosed the plan of the premises. 
I understand that I must now advertise my application. 
I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application<br> will 
be rejected. 

I agree to the above statement 

I agree 

PaymentDescription 10000816714, 1 

AuthCode 001844 

LicenceReference LPA-94212-353 

PaymentContactEmail 

The information you provide will be used fairly and lawfully and Southwark Council will not knowingly do 
anything which may lead to a breach of the Data Protection Act 1998. 

20



01
1V

tr
on

..J
:W

.1
'1

: 
..
..
..
,
r
..

.,
~ 

O
I'

HI
=.

"'
I:

!>
R"

~}
'£

FI
'N

 

~
 

~ 
-
:
-
:~

··
 

.· 
p!l

 
~
 

~1d
 

; 
-~

~~m
 

0-
-~

N 
T1

r l
v
--

-·-
--

; 
_ ....

 ...., 
• 

'-
.. 

.·.:
..

 
.•.'

 .
 

-
.. ,_

,-.
 

--
~.

 ·-
i 

-
-
-
~
 
~
 

-
~
~
 

. 
~'C

'Hf
:t-

1 
! 

0 
~
 

_
j 

''
 
-
-

--
~ 

f 
.
J
 _

/
 

-
.•

 ,
.
 
~

~ 
F 

;;=
 , 

r 
~~~

'~'1
 ' 

, 
1 1 

! 
'-~

·'·
 

0 
I)

 .
1.1

 .
•
 C

. 
, ..

 ::.
-H 

Lol
~J'

l 
1.:

4.
 

~
 

' 
::1

 :;~
~!?

;;:
:>·

,~;
 ~·

:..
;.}

: c
\.

 ·.
 

Cl
CN

t.
II

A~
O
I
O
r
t
 

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 A

P
P

LI
C

A
T

IO
N

 
~ 

Th
l:.

 cf
r:

.w
ln

; ~
oh

ou
td

 b
e 

re
m

cv
11

-d
 fr

om
 c

ur
r&

nc
y 

lm
ml

l'
dl:

~~t
ely
 

1-::-
=

=
:-

--
--

-.
L

-+
.:

=
--

--
-+

-=
:-

--
-

wh
ll

'n
:.

rc
vis

ed
wr

~o
n

iG
iti

-U
ed

. 
~
o

JC
;I

;'
I m

u:
: 

• 
t-..

'-o
 d

im
en

si
on

s 
n:

~v
c
 t

G
 b

e 
se

n 
le

d 
fr

om
 th

is
 cfr

aw
ln

g
. 

Z
IA

 L
U

C
IA

 R
E

S
T

A
U

R
A

N
T

 
-T

hl
'"

""
""
'~

""
'"

io
ht

od
. 

"
=
~
=
~
-
.
L
-
-
=
-
-
-
-
-
'
 ·

Al
l c

fim
cn

--.
.io

ns
ln

 m
m

'$
, 

35
-3

7 
T

O
W

E
R

 B
R

ID
G

E
 R

O
A

D
 

S
E

1 
4T

L,
 L

on
do

n
, U

K
 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 A

-A
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 B
-8

 
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 c

-c
 

00
12

 
A

21
02

 

0 
2 

li
e
=

-
-

3 
4 

S
m

. 

01
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 A

-A
 

1:
10

0 

0 2
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 8

-8
 

1:
10

0 

0 3
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 C

-C
 

1:
10

0
 

R
E

V
 

I D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
 

I D
A

TE
 

21



--
.;

r.
s 

--
·"

'"
''.~
 

"'
"-

'"
8o

 ..
 bi

£ 

~
 

·-
~
 

0
1 

I d 
!I

 

I 

( 

~
 

i\!1
1 

• '7
.;

·-
-.

-

i~
r.

~~
i!

 
~:

*{
~!

{~
>2

 
:0

/,
 
~
j
;
?
~
 

i!~
.-.

-
I 

~,
tJ
.!
:I
~J

·~~·
.'·

,·<
· 

-£
!f,

~~·-
~ .. -

~~
~~

~t
rf

FW
 . 

0 
3 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 F
R

O
N

T
 F

A
C

A
D

E
 B

LA
C

K
 M

E
T

A
L 

F
R

O
N

T
 S

IG
N

 L
IG

H
T

 L
A

M
P

 T
Y

P
E

 1
0

0
w

 E
S

 G
L

S
 

·R
E

F
E

R
E

N
C

E
 IM

A
G

E
 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 F
R

O
N

T
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

 
1:

10
0 

04
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 W

H
IT

E
 A

N
D

 G
R

E
Y

 S
T

R
IP

S
 A

W
N

IN
G

· 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 IM
A

G
E

 (F
R

O
M

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 
Z

IA
 L

U
C

IA
 R

E
S

T
A

U
R

A
N

T
 IN

 H
O

L
L

O
W

A
Y

 R
D

) 

-
-
~
 .. 

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 A

P
P

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 
• T

hi
>d

,..
..,

 ..
..

..
.,

.,
 ..

...
...

.,1
.,.

. .
..

,.
..

,.
 ..

 .,.
.,,

IO
IY

 
r.

~~
~m

u~-
--

-~
--

--
-L

--
~
~
~
--

--
--
~
~
-
-
-
-
~
~
~
~
~
~
5~
~
~
~
 

Z
IA

L
U

C
IA

R
E

S
T

A
U

R
A

N
T

 
·
T
h
i
>
d
,
.
.
.
;
r
q
~
-

1
-;

;;
=

=:
:-

--
-'

--
--

'-
--

--
-1

 ·A
I 
c.

fm
.,

.,
. n

 m
m

·s
. 

35
-3

7 
T

O
W

E
R

 B
R

ID
G

E
 R

O
A

D
 

S
E

1 
4

T
L,

 L
on

do
n,

 U
K

 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
F

R
O

N
T

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

 
R

E
A

R
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 

R
E

F
E

R
E

N
C

E
 I

M
A

G
E

S
 

00
12

 
A

21
01

 

-=
--
~
 

r
-
.
-
~
~
~
-
-
-
-
-
-
~
~
-
-
~
-
-
~
-
-
-
-
~
=
-
-

02
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 R

E
A

R
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 

1:
10

0 0 
2 

3 
4 

S
m

. 

R
E

V
 

!D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 

ID
A

T
E

 

22



02
 -

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 

C~
LW
o-
..
c:
oi
JTA

ll
n 

I 
-

-
~
 

~
I
I
I
O
l
t
 

""
"' 

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 A
P

P
L

IC
A

TI
O

N
 

A
3

 
L

V
 

L
V

 
-T

h
is

 d
,M

nQ
 s

ho
ul

d 
b

e 
1e

m
ow

d 
fro

m
 C

U
'l'e

nc
y 

lrn
m

ed
"l3

to
fy

 
w

he
n 

:1
 tc

\ll
se

d 
\II

O
f'i

io
rll

t i
uu

ed
. 

~
1
:
'
1
r
n
l
.
t
 

'"
' 

""
"' 

-
N

o 
dl

'n
oi

'!S
fo

rts
 !'I

a.
,..

 to
 b
e
~
 to

rn
 th

l• 
dr

aw
in

g.
 

Z
IA

 L
U

C
IA

 R
E

S
T

A
U

R
A

N
T

 
2

4
.0

3
.2

0
1

7
 

1:
1

0
0

@
A

3
 

• 
T

li
s 

dt
'31

W
!Q

 i
s 

co
py

rl
gt

ud
. 

-A
I d

lm
er

rs
.lo

ns
ll"

' m
m

'a.
 

-
=

<
 

3
5

-3
7

 T
O

W
E

R
 B

R
ID

G
E

 R
O

A
D

 
~
 .. 

l)
Oi

t!
IW

IH
G~
'
O
 

S
E

1 
4

T
L

. L
on

do
n

, 
U

K
 

0
0

1
2

 
R

E
V

 
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

 
D

A
T

E
 

23



&
 

@
 

-:--
---

l I 

-

0
1 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 P
LA

N
 

1:
1

0
0

 

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 A
P

?L
IC

A
 T

lO
N

 
• T

hl$
 or

:::
~wi
~g

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

m
ow

c!
 fr

om
 el

.X
rti

nc
y 

im
m

e
d!

3
tl!

ty
 

f
:
:
-
=
=
:
-
-
-
-
-
-
.
l
-
-
-
1
-
:
-
,
.
-
-
-
-
+
=
=
-
-
-
~
 w
he

rr
~r

~v
e~

IO
fl
~i

$~
.
 

~
c
e

t
n

n.
t 

·
N

o 
d

im
er

e:
iO

I'I
I h

::
:~
vo
 t

o
 b

o
 !
lc

:i
~
 f

ro
m

 th
is.

 d
r:

~>
Mn
g.
 

Z
IA

 L
U

C
IA

 R
E

ST
A

U
R

A
N

T
 

-T
hl
~
or

aw
s~

i~
co

py
ri
gh

te
d.

 
h:

::=
=

,-
-.

l-
--

=
--

--
-1

-A
il d

im
en

si
om

 In
 m

m
's

. 

3
5

-3
7

 T
O

W
E

R
 B

R
ID

G
E

 R
O

A
D

 
S

E
1 

4
T

L,
 L

on
do

n
, 

U
K

 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
G

R
O

U
N

D
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

 

00
12

 
A

2
10

0
 

0 

~
 

v A
 
~
 

~
 
~
 

2 
3 

Q
 

4 
S

m
. 

R
EV

 
D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 
D

A
T

E
 

24



Working for a safer Southwark 

The Licensing Unit Metropolitan Police Service 
Floor 3 Licensing Office 
160 Tooley Street Southwark Police Station, 

London 
SE1 2QH 

323 Borough High Street, 
LONDON, 
SE1 1JL 

Our reference: MD2954/17 

Date: 2nd May 2017 

Re:- Zia Lucia 35-37 Tower Bridge Road SE1 4TL 

Dear Sir/Madam 

Police are in receipt of an application from the above for a new premises licence to be 
granted under the licensing act 2003 for the following hours 

Premises open to the public 
Mon-Sun 1100 to 2300 

Sale/Supply of alcohol          
Mon-Sun 1100 to 2300  

The operating schedule indicates that this is for a restaurant style premises, the application 
however does not contain any control measures in order to restrict the operation to this 
specific manner. 
Police object to this application on the grounds that this premises could potentially be a 
vertical drinking establishment and could therefore have a detrimental impact on the 
prevention of crime and disorder. 
It is also noted that the supply of alcohol is in line with the closing time for the premises, this 
could potentially cause issues if anyone was to order alcohol just before the premises closes 
to the public. 

To address this matter Police would like to see the following addition to the operating 
schedule. 

1/ Persons shall not be permitted to leave the premises with alcohol sealed or 
unsealed. 

APPENDIX B
25



Working for a safer Southwark 

2/ Intoxicating liquor shall not be sold or supplied on the premises other than to 
persons having table meals and is for consumption by such person as an ancillary to 
this food .  

3/ The supply of alcohol will cease at least 30 minutes prior to the terminal hour as detailed 
on the premises licence. 

Police accept all the other conditions as offered in the operating schedule. 

The Following is submitted for your consideration, Police would welcome the 
opportunity to conciliate with the applicant should the need arise. 

Yours Sincerely 

PC Ian Clements 362MD 
Southwark Police Licensing Unit 

26



Our Ref. 00658/005 
Your Ref: MD2954/17 
Writer. Michael Buckworth 

The Licensing Unit 
Floor 3 
160 Tooley Street 
London 
SEl 2QH 

Dear Sirs 

Zia Lucia 2 Limited (Company number: 10638976) 
35-37 Tower Bridge Road, SE14TL 

We write further to your letter of 2 May 2017. 

10 May 2017 

We note the objections raised by the Police in rela tion to our client's premises license 
application. 

We confirm that Zia Lucia 2 Limited agrees to the insertion of the conditions requested in the 
operating schedule, specifically: 

1. Persons shall not be permitted to leave the premises with alcoholic beverages, sealed or 
unsealed. 

2. Intoxicating liquor shall not be sold or supplied on the premises other than to persons 
having table meals and is for consumption by s uch person as an ancillary to this food. 

3. The supply of alcohol will cease at least 30 minutes prior to the terminal hour as detailed 
on the premises license. 

We have advised the Principal Licensing Officer accordingly, and trust in the circumstances no 
further objection will be raised by yourselves to our client's a pplication. 

Yours faithfully, 

Buckworths 

CC: Andrew Heron, Principal Licensing Officer, London Borough of Southwark 
Andrew.Heron@southwarkgov.ul< 

26 Curtain Road, london EC2A 3NY 1 +44 (0)20 79 52 1723 I office@buckworths.com I www. buckworths.com 

Buckworths Is the trading name of Buckworths Limited which Is a limited company incorporated in England with registered number 7541905. 
The sole director Is Michael Buckworth. The firm Is registered with HMRC for the purposes of VAT with VAT GB 140 1769 34. 
The firm Is a body recognised and regulated by the Solldtors Regulation Authority In the UK with registered number 559537. 

The rules of the Solid tors Regulation Authority can be accessed at http:/ fwww.sra.org.ukf. 

27



1

Heron, Andrew

From:  

Sent: 11 May 2017 10:06
To: Heron, Andrew
Cc:
Subject: RE: Zia Lucia

Andrew, 
As they have accepted the conditions we withdraw are objection 
Regards 
Graham 

PC Graham White 288MD 
Southwark Police Licensing Unit 
323 Borough High Street 
London 
SE1 1JL 

 
  

From: Heron, Andrew [mailto:Andrew.Heron@southwark.gov.uk]  
Sent: 10 May 2017 18:00 
To: MD Mailbox ‐ Southwark Licensing   
Subject: FW: Zia Lucia 

Dear PC Clements, 

Please find attached a copy of your representation and a response from the applicant. 

I look forward to hearing from you. 

Regards, 

Andrew Heron 
Principal Licensing Officer 
London Borough of Southwark 
Regulatory Services – Environment & Leisure 
020 7525 5767 

Address: Licensing Unit, Hub 1, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH 
Switchboard: 020 7525 5000 
Website: www.southwark.gov.uk 

28



2

From: Michael Buckworth  
Sent: Wednesday, May 10, 2017 5:44 PM 
To: Heron, Andrew 
Subject: Re: Zia Lucia 

Andrew 

Many thanks for your email.  

Please find attached a letter to the police and a letter to TS. We have sent these in the post and email today. 

In short, we have accepted all requests made by them.  

Kind regards 

Mike 

On Wed, May 10, 2017 at 11:57 AM, Heron, Andrew <Andrew.Heron@southwark.gov.uk> wrote: 

Dear Mr Buckworth, 

Further to our telephone conversation, there are two representation from responsible authorities – the Police 
and Trading Standards.  Please find copies attached for you information. 

Should your client agree to the proposals, please contact the individual authority directly and copy me in. 

As advised, I will forward a complete list of objections following the end of the consultation, which will 
include the local residets’. 

Regards, 

Andrew Heron 

Principal Licensing Officer 

London Borough of Southwark 

Regulatory Services – Environment & Leisure 

020 7525 5767 

Address: Licensing Unit, Hub 1, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH 

29



1

Heron, Andrew

From: Regen, Licensing
Sent: 02 May 2017 14:51
To: Heron, Andrew
Subject: FW: Application for Premise Licence - Zia Lucia 35 Tower Bridge Rd SE1 4TL

From: Masini, Bill  
Sent: Tuesday, May 02, 2017 2:49 PM 
To: Regen, Licensing 
Cc: Tear, Jayne 
Subject: Application for Premise Licence - Zia Lucia 35 Tower Bridge Rd SE1 4TL 

As a Responsible Authority under The Licensing Act, Trading Standards are in receipt of the application for a premise 
licence for Zia Lucia  at 35 Tower Bridge Rd London SE1 4TL and respond accordingly under the Licensing objective of 
The Protection of Children from harm. 

Trading Standards acknowledge and welcome the statements made in the Protection of children from Harm box at 
Paragraph M (e) [Challenge 25, etc.]  though for completeness and clarity would like to see the following conditions 
worded on the licence: 

 That a challenge 25 scheme shall be maintained at the premises requiring that staff selling alcohol request
that any customer who looks under 25 years old, and who is attempting to purchase alcohol, provides valid
photographic identification proving that the customer is at least 18 years old. Valid photographic
identification is composed of a driving licence, passport, UK armed services ID card and any Proof of Age
Standards Scheme (PASS) accredited card such as the Proof of Age London (PAL) card.

 That all staff involved in the sale of alcohol shall be trained in the prevention of sales of alcohol to underage
persons, and the challenge 25 scheme in operation at the premises. A record of such training shall be kept /
be accessible at the premises at all times and be made immediately available for inspection at the premises
to council or police officers on request. The training record shall include the trainee’s name (in block
capitals), the trainer’s name (in block capitals), the signature of the trainee, the signature of the trainer, the
date(s) of training and a declaration that the training has been received.

 That clearly legible signs shall be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by
customers stating to the effect that a challenge 25 policy is in operation at the premises, that customers
may be asked to provide proof of age and stating what the acceptable forms of proof of age are. Such
signage shall be displayed at all entrances, points of sale and in all areas where alcohol is displayed for sale.
The signage shall be kept free from obstructions at all times.

 That a register of refused sales of alcohol shall be maintained in order to demonstrate effective operation of
the challenge 25 policy. The register shall be clearly and legibly marked on the front cover as a register of
refused sales, with the address of the premises and with the name and address of the licence holder. The
register shall be kept / be accessible at the premises at all times. On a monthly basis, the Designated
Premises Supervisor (DPS) shall check the register to ensure it is being properly completed. The DPS shall
sign and date the register to that effect and where appropriate take corrective action in a timely manner if
the register is not being completed correctly. The register shall be made immediately available for
inspection at the premises to council or police officers on request.

 That any children must be accompanied and supervised by a responsible adult.

30



2

Bill Masini ‐ Trading Standards Officer  
Southwark Council Trading Standards | Environment & Leisure  
3rd Floor Hub 1, PO Box 64529 | London SE1P 5LX  
Direct line 020 7525 2629 | Fax 020 7525 5735 | Call Centre 020 7525 2000  
Visit our web pages www.southwark.gov.uk/TradingStandards  
Need clear practical consumer advice? Visit Consumer Direct at www.direct.gov.uk/consumer  

31



Our Ref: 00658/005 
Your Ref: MD29S4/ 17 
Writer· Michael Buckworth 

FAO Bill Masini 
Southwark Council Trading Standards 
3rd Floor Hub 1, 
PO Box 64529 
London SE1P 5LX 

Dear Sirs 

Zla Lucia 2 Limited (Company number: 10638976) 
35·37 Tower Bridge Road, SE1 4TL 

We write further to your email of2 May 2017. 

10 May 2017 

We note the comments of Trading Standards in relation to our client's premises license 
application. 

We confirm that Zia Lucia 2 Limited agrees to the insertion of the conditions requested in the 
license, specifically: 

1. A Challenge 25 scheme shall be maintained at the premises requiring that staff selling 
alcohol request that any customer who looks under 25 years old and who is attempting 
to purchase alcohol, provides vahd photographiC identification proving that the 
customer is at least 18 years old. Valid photographic identification is composed of a 
driving license, passport, UK armed services 10 card and any Proof of Age Standards 
Scheme (PASS) accredited card such as the Proof of Age London (PAL) card. 

2. All staff involved in the sale of alcohol shall be trained in the prevention of sales of 
alcohol to underage persons, and the Challenge 25 scheme in operation at the premises. 
A record of such training shall be kept/ be accessible at the premises at all times and be 
made immediately available for Inspection at the premises to council or police officers 
on request. The training record shall include the trainee's name (in bloc!< capitals), the 
signature of the trainee, the signature of the trainer, the date(s) of training and a 
declaration that the training has been received. 

3. A register of refused sales of alcohol shall be maintained on order to demonstrate 
effective operation of the Challenge 25 policy. The register shall be clearly and legibly 
marked on the front cover as a register of refused sales, with the address of the premises 
and with the name and address of the license holder. The register shall be kept fbe 
accessible at the premises at all times. On a monthly basis, the Designated Premises 
Supervisor (DPS) shall check the register to ensure that it is being properly completed. 
The DPS shall sign and date the register to that effect and where appropriate take 
corrective action in a timely matter if the register is not being completed correctly. The 
register shall be made immediately available for inspection at the premises to council or 
to police officers on request 

4. Any children must be accompanied and supervised by a responsible adult. 

26 Curtain Road, London EC2A 3NY 1 +44 (0)20 7952 17231 offlce@buckworths.com I www b.xkworths.com 

Buckworths is the tr.lding name of Buckworths Umited which is a limited comp~ny lncorpornted in England with registered number 7541905. 
The sole director is M!ch~el Duckworth. The flrm Is registered with HMRC for the purposes of VAT with VAT GB 140 1769 34. 
The firm Is a body recognised and regui.:Jted by the Solicitors Regui.:Jtlon Authority In the UK with registered number 559537. 

The rules of the Solid tors Rqulatlon Authority can be accessed ~t bttp:ffwww.sraorg,uk/. 

32



We have advised the Principal Licensing Officer accordingly, and trust in the circumstances no 
fur ther objection will be raised by yourselves to our client's application. 

Yours faith fully, 

Buckworths 

CC: Andrew Heron, Principal Licensing Officer, London Borough of South war)( 
Andrew.Heron@southwark.gov.uk 

33



1

Heron, Andrew

From: Masini, Bill
Sent: 11 May 2017 15:01
To: 'Michael Buckworth'; Heron, Andrew
Subject: RE: Zia Lucia

Many thanks to you both. 

Andrew, Trading Standards are happy to withdraw its representation relating to this application. 

Best regards 

Bill Masini ‐ Trading Standards Officer  
Southwark Council Trading Standards | Environment & Social Regeneration 
3rd Floor Hub 1, PO Box 64529 | London SE1P 5LX  
Direct line 020 7525 2629 | Fax 020 7525 5735 | Call Centre 020 7525 2000  
Visit our web pages www.southwark.gov.uk/TradingStandards  
Need clear practical consumer advice? Visit Consumer Direct at www.direct.gov.uk/consumer  

From: Michael Buckworth ] 
Sent: Thursday, May 11, 2017 1:22 PM 
To: Heron, Andrew 
Cc: Masini, Bill 
Subject: Re: Zia Lucia 

Andrew 

Absolutely - we accept that condition.  

I will send you a letter on letterhead confirming that point.  

Kind regards 

Mike 

On Thu, May 11, 2017 at 10:45 AM, Heron, Andrew <Andrew.Heron@southwark.gov.uk> wrote: 

Dear Mike, 

34



2

Having spoken to Trading Standards, there is a concern that you have not addressed one of the conditions in 
relation to challenge 25 in your conciliation letter: 

That clearly legible signs shall be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by customers stating 
to the effect that a challenge 25 policy is in operation at the premises, that customers may be asked to provide proof 
of age and stating what the acceptable forms of proof of age are. Such signage shall be displayed at all entrances, 
points of sale and in all areas where alcohol is displayed for sale. The signage shall be kept free from obstructions at 
all times. 

Can you confirm that you client also accepts this? 

There is an intention to withdraw the representation if this is agreed. 

Regards, 

Andrew Heron 

Principal Licensing Officer 

London Borough of Southwark 

Regulatory Services – Environment & Leisure 

020 7525 5767 

Address: Licensing Unit, Hub 1, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH 

Switchboard: 020 7525 5000 

Website: www.southwark.gov.uk 

From: Michael Buckworth [mailto:mbuckworth@buckworths.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, May 10, 2017 5:44 PM 
To: Heron, Andrew 
Subject: Re: Zia Lucia 

35



3

Andrew 

Many thanks for your email.  

Please find attached a letter to the police and a letter to TS. We have sent these in the post and email today. 

In short, we have accepted all requests made by them.  

Kind regards 

Mike 

On Wed, May 10, 2017 at 11:57 AM, Heron, Andrew <Andrew.Heron@southwark.gov.uk> wrote: 

Dear Mr Buckworth, 

Further to our telephone conversation, there are two representation from responsible authorities – the Police 
and Trading Standards.  Please find copies attached for you information. 

Should your client agree to the proposals, please contact the individual authority directly and copy me in. 

As advised, I will forward a complete list of objections following the end of the consultation, which will 
include the local residets’. 

Regards, 

Andrew Heron 

Principal Licensing Officer 

36



4

London Borough of Southwark 

Regulatory Services – Environment & Leisure 

020 7525 5767 

Address: Licensing Unit, Hub 1, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH 

Switchboard: 020 7525 5000 

Website: www.southwark.gov.uk 

The email you received and any files transmitted with it are confidential, may be covered by legal and/or 
professional privilege and are intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are 
addressed. If you have received this in error please notify us immediately. If you are not the intended 
recipient of the email or the person responsible for delivering it to them you may not copy it, forward it or 
otherwise use it for any purpose or disclose its contents to any other person. To do so may be unlawful. 
Where opinions are expressed in the email they are not necessarily those of Southwark Council and 
Southwark Council is not responsible for any changes made to the message after it has been sent.  

--  

Michael Buckworth

Partner

Buckworths is the trading name of Buckworths Limited which is a limited company incorporated in England with registered number 7541905 and 
registered address at 26 Curtain Road, London, EC2A 3NY. It is a body recognized and regulated by the Solicitors Regulation Authority in the UK 
with registered number 559537 including for any incidental services relating to investments, insurance and mortgages.

The rules of the Solicitors Regulation Authority can be accessed at http://www.sra.org.uk/.

This email comes from a law firm and may be privileged and confidential. If you are not the addressee, or have received this email in error, please 
delete it immediately.

The email you received and any files transmitted with it are confidential, may be covered by legal and/or 
professional privilege and are intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are 
addressed. If you have received this in error please notify us immediately. If you are not the intended 
recipient of the email or the person responsible for delivering it to them you may not copy it, forward it or 
otherwise use it for any purpose or disclose its contents to any other person. To do so may be unlawful. 

37



1

Heron, Andrew

From: Regen, Licensing
Sent: 02 May 2017 08:50
To: Heron, Andrew
Subject: FW: licensing application 85839

From: 
Sent: Monday, May 01, 2017 4:53 PM 
To: Regen, Licensing 
Subject: licensing application 85839 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

We oppose to the restaurant licensing application 85839. 
The reasons are: noise, smells, late operating hours etc 

Best regards 

PARTY A

APPENDIX C38



--
9th May 2017 

Dear Southwark Licensing Authority, 

We write to object to the restaurant licence application 858359 for 35-37 
Tower Bridge Road. 
We live with our family at 
We object to this Licensing Application on the grounds of nuisance and 
protection of children. 
The most important nuisance caused by this application would be noise from a 
new, commercial activity which would be brought into: 
1) what is solely residential area tab the back of the properties along Green 
Walk, Alice Street and Tower Bridge Road. This enclosed area is silent at night 
and is were we have our bedrooms and where the children sleep. 
2) Our windows of our home are close to the rear of the property of the 
applicant. They are applying to be open Monday to Sunday 11am to 11pm, 
they want to have outside tables and they bare also applying for a licence to 
have music. It is not conceivable that this licence could be issued without 
serious nuisance and reduction in living standards for ourselves, our children 
and our neighbours. All residents have right to be able to sleep and be quiet in 
their homes and children have a particular right to have their sleep 
protected and not to have their homes and area changed from solely 
residential to commercial use. 
3} The selling of alcohol for consumption through the day, seven days a week, 
again next to homes is another reason to concern. 

We hope the Council will take steps to ensure the process is fair. Please refuse 
the licence aoolied for this Prooertv. 

39



1

Heron, Andrew

From: Regen, Licensing
Sent: 02 May 2017 08:43
To: Heron, Andrew
Subject: RE: licensing application 85839

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: 
Sent: Monday, May 01, 2017 4:44 PM 
To: Regen, Licensing 
Subject: licensing application 85839 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

We oppose to the restaurant licensing application 85839. 
The reasons are: noise, smells, late operating hours etc 

Best regards 

PARTY B

40



9th May 2017 

Dear Southwark Licensing Authority, 

We write to object to the restaurant licence application 858359 for 35-37 
Tower Bridge Road. 
We live with our family at 
We object to this Licensing Application on the grounds of nuisance and 
protection of children. 
The most important nuisance caused by this application would be noise from a 
new, commercial activity which would be brought into: 
1} what is solely residential area tab the back of the properties along Green 
Walk, Alice Street and Tower Bridge Road . This enclosed area is silent at night 
and is were we have our bedrooms and where the children sleep. 
2) Our windows of our home are close to the rear of the property of the 
applicant. They are applying to be open Monday to Sunday 11am to 11pm, 
they want to have outside tables and they bare also applying for a licence to 
have music. It is not conceivable that this licence could be issued without 
serious nuisance and reduction in living standards for ourselves, our children 
and our neighbours. All residents have right to be able to sleep and be quiet in 
their homes and children have a particular right to have their sleep 
protected and not to have their homes and area changed from solely 
residential to commercial use. 
3} The selling of alcohol for consumption through the day, seven days a week, 
again next to homes is another reason to concern. 

We hope the Council will take steps to ensure the process is fair. Please refuse 

the licence applied for this Property. 

Sincerely yours, 

41



1

Heron, Andrew

From: Regen, Licensing
Sent: 02 May 2017 08:48
To: Heron, Andrew
Subject: FW: icensing application 85839.

From: 
Sent: Monday, May 01, 2017 4:46 PM 
To: Regen, Licensing 
Subject: icensing application 85839. 

Dear Sir/Madam,

We oppose to the restaurant licensing application 85839. 
The reasons are: noise, smells, late operating hours etc 

Best regards 

PARTY C

42



9th May 2017 

Dear Southwark Licensing Authority, 

We write to object to the restaurant licence application 858359 for 35-37 
Tower Bridge Road. 
We live with our family at 2 Green Walk, London SE1 4TU. 
We object to this Licensing Application on the grounds of nuisance and 
protection of children. 
The most important nuisance caused by this application would be noise from a 
new, commercial activity which would be brought into: 
1} what is solely residential area tab the back of the properties along Green 
Walk, Alice Street and Tower Bridge Road . This enclosed area is silent at night 
and is were we have our bedrooms and where the children sleep. 
2) Our windows of our home are close to the rear of the property of the 
applicant. They are applying to be open Monday to Sunday 11am to 11pm, 
they want to have outside tables and they bare also applying for a licence to 
have music. It is not conceivable that this licence could be issued without 
serious nuisance and reduction in living standards for ourselves, our children 
and our neighbours. All residents have right to be able to sleep and be quiet in 
their homes and children have a particular right to have their sleep 
protected and not to have their homes and area changed from solely 
residential to commercial use. 
3} The selling of alcohol for consumption through the day, seven days a week, 
again next to homes is another reason to concern. 

We hope the Council will take steps to ensure the process is fair. Please refuse 

the licence applied for this Property. 

Sincerely yours, 

43



1

Heron, Andrew

From: Regen, Licensing
Sent: 02 May 2017 16:29
To: Heron, Andrew
Subject: FW: OBJECTION TO LICENSING APPLICATION 85839

From: Franklin, David  
Sent: Tuesday, May 02, 2017 3:24 PM 
To: '  Regen, Licensing 
Subject: FW: OBJECTION TO LICENSING APPLICATION 85839 

Dear Mr Nation, 

I have forwarded your representation to licensing@southwark.gov.uk which is the email address to be used for 
representations, the licensing team will respond to you. 

I do understand that you may not have known the correct address to send your email to, but would ask if you can 
refrain from sending any further correspondence directly to the Chair of the Licensing Committee as this can lead to 
difficulties in the Chair being able to sit on meetings where she has been contacted directly by parties involved in a 
licence application hearing. 

Kind regards 

David 

David Franklin 
Team Leader Licensing 
Regulatory Services 

From: 
Date: 2 May 2017 at 08:35:22 BST 
To: "
Subject: OBJECTION TO LICENSING APPLICATION 85839 

PARTY D

44



2

Monday 1st May 2017 

Dear Sir/Madame, 

Licensing Application 858359 

I formally object to the Application 858359. My family and I live at 
which is   the location for the proposed Zia Luca pizza restaurant and know 
that this restaurant will have a direct impact on the lives of my family and neighbours. 

The last two weeks prior to this letter we have had to endure the sight and the smell of the 
burning of materials from this site. The smell has been entering our home even with the 
windows closed. It has been uncomfortable to endure this already and the building of the 
property has not even commenced yet.  

In most restaurants the kitchen is located at the rear of the premises and this will be the 
most likely place that the kitchen of Zia Luca will be. If the kitchen operates with any 
windows open of there is insufficient sound proofing then this will result in noise 
disturbance being heard from our home till late at night. The kitchen will require an 
industrial extraction system for the kitchen and I know regardless of where the kitchen will 
be in the restaurant, the extraction will be at the rear of the property to meet planning 
regulations. I believe this extraction will cause noise all the time that the kitchen is open 
and would not want to hear this noise at anytime in my house. 

Also the smells coming from the restaurant will be distasteful to our home and I fear we will 
not be able to open our windows any time during opening hours or even after hours if the 
refuse waste is not properly stored. I also believe that with refuse potientially being stored 
in the rear of the restaurant there will be an increased attraction to pests in the area. Our 
area already has foxes and we would not welcome the opportunity for rats, mice roaches 
and other vermin to be attracted to the restaurant and use my garden as a pathway and 
become a direct problem to my house hold. Is this business going to pay for future pest 
control for my property? 

45



3

The fact the proposed premises could have an out door space at the rear doesn't sit well 
with me because the out door space could be used for an outdoor seating, dining, drinking 
and space use the rear space for breaks all these uses for the area at the rear would bring 
opportunity for a lot of noise nuisence. 

We have 8 children in our home who need to the sleep at night, my wife and my self are 
both workers who work shifts and start work early mornings and late nights. We all need 
good sleep before work and before our children goes to school. Two of our bedrooms are 
located at the rear of our property so at night it is very important that we are able to sleep 
without noise generated from the proposed restaurant being a daily disturbance. 

If the restaurant is given the go ahead and is allowed to open. We strongly request to be 
given band one pritority on the Southwark Homesearch bidding. Our application number is 
3097351. This will cause my family great stress and strain. Looking to kill us. 

Please take these points I have raised in my objection to the license application 858359 into 
consideration. 

Kind Regards 

46



1

Heron, Andrew

From: Regen, Licensing
Sent: 02 May 2017 12:20
To: Heron, Andrew
Subject: FW: Application 858359 - Objection

From: 
Sent: Tuesday, May 02, 2017 11:34 AM 
To: Regen, Licensing 
Subject: Application 858359 - Objection 

Dear Sir, 

1 May 2017 
Application 858359 

Please find my written objection to the above license application. My property is one of a number of family homes 
that backs onto the rear of the proposed premises and specifically my bedroom overlooks the rear of the property. If 
this application is approved then it is very likely that this will have a detrimental impact onto my ability to sleep and 
the enjoyment of my outside space. 

Whilst it is good that Tower Bridge Road is improving there are a number of ways where the opening of this 
restaurant could impact my family and the enjoyment of our home and outside space. Additionally the hours of 
opening has the potential to disturb and prevent sleep towards the end of the restaurant’s operating hours and 
during the clear up period following closing time. There are a number of potential issues that arise that form my 
objection and they are detailed below: 

1. It is very likely the restaurant’s kitchen will be at the rear of the premises. If the kitchen operates with its
windows open then this will result in noise and disturbance from the restaurant late into the night.

2. There is an outside space to the rear of the premises. There is a risk that this may be used as an outside
dining/drinking space/smoking area. Again this will result in noise and disturbance from the restaurant late
into the night.

3. Even if customers are prevented from using the outside space there is a risk that staff will make use of the
space for their breaks. Staff chatter during breaks will bounce off the walls in the enclosed space behind the
homes of Green Walk and Alice Street and again will result in noise and disturbance from the restaurant late
into the night.

4. There is a risk that bins will be located in the rear outside space. Rubbish being placed into these bins during
restaurant operation and post‐closing clear up will result in noise and disturbance late into the night. Noise
from beer/wine bottles is particularly noisy.

5. Extraction noise – The restaurant will require an industrial extraction system for the kitchen. Regardless of
kitchen location this will be located at the rear of the premises to suit planning regulations. The extraction
system could operate all of the time that the kitchen is open. There is a risk that this will be noisy and result
in disturbance.

6. Smells – The extraction system will obviously extract smells from the kitchen as part of its operation. These
will waft over the rear of our homes and we will be subject to continuous cooking smells.

As a result I believe that a restaurant is unsuitable for this particular location and that the application should be 
denied.  

PARTY E
47



1

Heron, Andrew

From: Tahir, Sarah
Sent: 03 May 2017 12:13
To: Heron, Andrew
Subject: FW: Objection - Restaurant Licence Application - rear of our home  Application 

858359, 35-37 Tower Bridge Road
Attachments: Licensing Application Objection Southwark 858359 35-37 Tower Bridge Road 

3.5.17.pdf

Added to l1u  = 858359 

From: 
Sent: Wednesday, May 03, 2017 11:58 AM 
To: Regen, Licensing 
Subject: Objection - Restaurant Licence Application - rear of our home Application 858359, 35-37 Tower Bridge 
Road 

3rd	May	2017	

Dear	Southwark	Licensing	Authority,	

We	write	to	OBJECT	to	the	restaurant	licence	application	858359	for	35‐37	Tower	Bridge	Road.	

We	live	with	our	family	at	

We	object	to	this	Licensing	Application	on	the	grounds	of	nuisance	and	protection	of	children.	

The	most	important	nuisance	caused	by	this	application	would	be	noise	from	a	new,	commercial	
activity	which	would	be	brought	into:	

1) what	is	a	solely	residential	area	at	the	back	of	the	properties	along	Green	Walk,	Alice	Street
and	Tower	Bridge	Road.		This	enclosed	area	is	silent	at	night	and	is	where	we,	as	do	most
residents,	have	our	bedrooms	and	is	for	many	where	the	children	sleep.	Please	come	and	visit
our	home	(s)	to	check	this	fact	if	you	are	in	doubt.

2) The	rear	windows	of	our	home	are	15	feet	from	the	rear	of	the	property	of	the
applicant.		Other	windows	are	equally	close	in	this	very	confined	and	quiet	space.		At	the	rear
of	the	property	for	which	the	applicant	is	applying	for	a	licence	are	windows,	doors,	an	area
where	in	their	accompanying	Planning	Application	they	want	to	have	outside	tables,	and	doors
to	a	storage	area.		They	are	applying	to	be	open	Monday	to	Sunday	11am	to	11	pm.		They	are
also	applying	for	a	licence	to	have	music.		It	is	not	conceivable	that	this	licence	could	be
issued	without	serious	nuisance	and	reduction	in	living	standards	for	ourselves,	our
neighbours,	and	our	children.	All	residents	have	a	right	to	be	able	to	sleep	and	be	quiet	in
their	homes,	and	children	in	particular	have	a	particular	right	we	feel	to	have	their	sleep
protected	and	not	to	have	their	homes	and	area	changed	from	solely	residential	to	commercial
use.

3) The	selling	of	alcohol	for	consumption	through	the	day,	seven	days	a	week,	again	next	to
homes	and	close	to	two	schools	(Tower	Bridge	Road	and	Bricklayers’	Arms)	is	another	reason
for	concern.

PARTY F

48



2

4) Nuisance	would	also	be	caused	by	people	parking	in	Green	Street	for	take‐aways,	by	delivery
riders	coming	to	and	from	the	restaurant	for	take‐aways,	and	by	anyone	coming	to	the
restaurant	by	car	or	motor‐bike.

The	applicant	has	made	no	attempt	in	their	application	to	recognise	or	take	account	of	the	residential	
character	at	the	back	of	their	premises	and	the	serious	disturbance	their	plans	would	cause	us	and	the	
other	residents.	

Can	we	also	please	also	point	out	that	no	notice	of	the	application	for	this	licence	was	delivered	to	our	
door	in	Green	Street,	and	therefore	possibly	to	none	of	the	properties	in	Green	Walk,	nor	to	any	of	the	
affected	properties	along	Alice	Street.		The	only	way	to	know	about	this	Licence	Application	was	for	
us	to	see	it	by	chance	in	the	window	of	the	property	on	Tower	Bridge	Road.		This	risks	serious	bias	to	
the	process	in	favour	of	the	application.		I	hope	the	Council	will	take	steps	to	ensure	the	process	is	fair.

Please	refuse	the	licence	applied	for	this	Property.	We	would	remind	the	Council	that	the	last	time	a	
Planning	Application	was	made	for	this	Property	it	was	disputed,	taken	to	a	meeting	of	Councillors	
and	that	the	Councillors	decided	only	to	grant	the	application	with	strong	conditions	restricting	noise,	
opening	hours,	hours	of	occupation	of	the	property	by	those	working	there	–	and	none	of	these	
restrictions	are	compatible	with	the	present	Licence	Application.	

		

(Please	find	signed	and	scanned	copy	of	this	objection	attached).	

49



1

Heron, Andrew

From: Regen, Licensing
Sent: 11 May 2017 08:59
To: Heron, Andrew
Subject: RE: Licensing Objection

From: 
Sent: Wednesday, May 10, 2017 11:09 PM 
To: Regen, Licensing 

Subject: Licensing Objection 
Importance: High 

Dear Licensing Team  

On behalf of my constituents, I would like to raise an objection to change of use application 858359 relating to 35‐37 
Tower Bridge Road, SE1 4TL which is proposed as a pizza take‐away and restaurant. I am very concerned that there 
does not seem to be sufficient consideration by the applicants of the impact on neighbours on Green Walk and Alice 
Street, the potential to cause nuisance including noise at anti‐social hours (especially if there is outdoor seating to 
which I object), inadequate ventilation and inappropriate waste and servicing arrangements. 

This application requires further scrutiny alongside the planning application for change of use. 

Kind regards 

PARTY G

50



Our Ref: 00658/005 
Writer: Michael Buckworth 

 
  

TO THE RESIDENTS, 
Tower Bridge Road, 
Green Walk, 
Alice Street, 
London SEl 

Dear Sirs 

Zia Lucia Z Limited 
35-37 Tower Bridge Road, SEl 4TL 
Licensing Application 858359 

12 May 2017 

We act for Zia Lucia 2 Limited, who have made an application for a premises license in respect of 
the above property. We understand that you have raised some objections to the application. 
These objections have been provided to us (in an anonymised form) by Southwark Licensing 
Authority. 

Our client values its rela tionship with local residents very highly. The purpose of this letter is to 
explain what our client intends to do with the premises and hopefully to allay any concerns that 
you may have in relation to the application. 

About Zia Lucia 

Zia Lucia runs a high quality family-friendly pizza restaurant operating from an existing venue in 
Holloway, North London. The business was founded by two Italians who have a love for Italian 
food and dreamed of opening an artisan local pizza restaurant. The founders are planning to 
open a second venue on Tower Bridge Road which will operate in a very similar way to the 
existing venue in Holloway. 

Our client's focus is on serving food. However, as is the case with most restaurants, diners often 
want to be able to have an alcoholic drink with their meal. The purpose of the application for the 
premises license is to allow our clients to serve alcohol in this context. 

The provision of alcohol 

Zia Lucia is not a bar. Alcohol will only be served as an accompaniment to food being consumed 
by customers on the premises. Customers will not be permitted to take alcohol off the premises. 

The proposed closing time for the venue is llpm in the evening. We have agreed with Southwark 
Licensing Authority that (if the premises license is granted) alcohol will only be served until 
10.30pm. This will allow sufficient time for customers to finish their food and drinks and leave 
the restaurant in an orderly fashion by llpm. This will also help to ensure that customers 
leaving the restaurant do so gradually. 

26 Curtain Road, London EC2A 3NY  

Buckworths Is the tr.Jding llilme of Buckworths Umited which ls n limited company Incorporated In England with registered number 7541905. 
The sole director Is Michael Duckworth. The firm ls registered with HMRC for the purposes of VAT with VAT GB 140 1769 34. 
The firm 1s n body recognised and regul.:lted by the Solidtors Regul.:ltlon Authority In the UK with registered number 559537. 

The rules of the Solldtors Regulation Authority can be accessed nt bttp:/ fwww.sraorg,uk/. 

51



Alcohol will not be served to minors - our client will be operating a Challenge 25 policy, and any 
children on the premises will have to be accompanied by a responsible adult. 

Operation of the restaurant 

The premises already has permission for activities falling under A3 usage. This includes the 
operation of a restaurant. The application to which you have raised objections is for the alcohol 
license which allows alcohol to be served at the premises. 

You may be aware that Zia Lucia has also made several planning applications in respect of the 
premises. A number of the objections raised relate more to these applications than to the 
application for the premises licence which (if granted) would allow our client to serve alcohol to 
diners. Although these objections are not strictly relevant to this application, we thought that it 
would be useful to address some of the concerns raised about the operation of a restaurant in the 
premises. 

Location of the kitchen 

The possibility of noise and smells from the restaurant kitchen was of concern to some residents. 
Some residents assumed that the kitchen would be at the rear of the premises. In fact it will be in 
the centre of the premises. 

The premises is split into three rooms: the front room on the street side will be the main dining 
room, a room in the centre of the premises will be the kitchen and the rear room will be a second 
dining room. A feature of Zia Lucia's restaurants is that pizzas and all hot food are cooked in a 
pizza oven which is located at the edge of the main dining room. The kitchen itself will only be 
used for the preparation of cold foods such as salads. Our client does not fry any food or use 
other food preparation processes that are smelly. 

As such there will be no noise or smells emanating from the kitchen onto the rear of the property. 

Noise 

Our client has taken steps to ensure that any noise from the restaurant will be minimal. Our 
client intends to install soundproofing throughout the premises to prevent noise leaking into 
neighbouring properties. Our client did this in its llolloway venue and it has proved very 
successful in ensuring that any noise in the restaurant does not interfere with residents. 

Our client has noted the concerns of residents with regards to the use of the courtyard at the rear 
of the premises for outdoor seating. In light of the justifiable concerns raised, our client has 
written to Southwark Licensing Authority and the planning authority confirming that it will not 
permit patrons to eat in the rear yard of the premises. Customers will therefore access the 
restaurant through the front doors on Tower Bridge Street only and will not be permitted in the 
courtyard at the rear. 

Smells 

Our client intends to use the existing chimney in the premises to deal with the discharge from the 
pizza oven. The only change that our client intends to make, is to install a more modern and high 
quality extractor unit to the chimney to ensure that smelly gases are removed from those emitted 
from the oven. The current unit (for which planning permission is in place) would allow some 
smells to leak into the air - our client is seeking to improve this position with its proposals. 

We note the concerns of residents that rubbish could be stored in the rear yard and that this 
could attract rodents and pests. Our client will store all rubbish in pest-proof containers and will 
also pay for rubbish to be picked up by a private commercial contractor on a regular basis. 

52



Summary 

It is very important to our client that its relationship with residents is good and that residents 
feel that Zia Lucia contributes in a positive way to the local area. We have worked hard with our 
client and their design team to put together a plan that addresses the concerns of residents. 

We would stress that Zia Lucia has operated a similar venue in Holloway for over a year during 
which time it has received no complaints from neighbours. Our client is confident that it would 
be able to operate the premises on Tower Bridge Road in harmony with local residents. 

We hope that this letter has gone some way to reassure you that the concerns raised by residents 
have been considered and hopefully resolved. 

If you do have any further concerns, please do not hesitate to contact us to discuss them further. 

Yours faithfully, 

Buckworths 

53



© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey (0)100019252. Land Registry Index data is subject to Crown copyright and is
reproduced with the permission of Land Registry.

APPENDIX D54



Item No. 
6.

Classification:
Open

Date:
12 June 2017

Meeting Name:
Licensing sub-committee

Report title: Licensing Act 2003: Best Food & Wine, 171 Queens 
Road, London SE15 2ND – Transfer Application

Ward(s) or groups affected: Nunhead 

From: Strategic Director of Environment and Social 
Regeneration

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That the licensing sub-committee considers an application made by Pushparani 
Arulrajah to transfer a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of the 
premises known as Best Food & Wine, 171 Queens Road, London SE15 2ND.

2. This is an application to transfer the premises licence, submitted under Section 42 of 
the Licensing Act 2003. The application is subject to an objection notice from the 
Metropolitan Police Service and is therefore referred to the sub-committee for 
determination.

3. Paragraphs 12 to 15 of this report provide a summary of the application under 
consideration by the sub-committee. A copy of the full application is attached as 
Appendix A.

4. Paragraphs 16 to 27 of this report deals with the police objection notice received to the 
transfer application. A copy of the relevant police objection notice is attached as 
Appendix B.

5. A copy of the council’s approved procedure for hearings of the sub-committee in 
relation to an application made under the Licensing Act 2003, along with a copy of the 
hearing regulations, has been circulated to all parties to the meeting. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Licensing Act 2003

6. The Licensing Act 2003 received Royal Assent on 10 July 2003. The Act provides a  
licensing regime for:

 The sale of and supply of alcohol
 The provision of regulated entertainment
 The provision of late night refreshment.

7. Within Southwark, the licensing responsibility is wholly administered by this council.

8. The Act requires the licensing authority to carry out its functions under the Act with a 
view to promoting the four stated licensing objectives. These are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 The promotion of public safety
 The prevention of nuisance
 The protection of children from harm.

9. In carrying out its licensing functions, a licensing authority must also have regard to:

55
Agenda Item 6



 The Act itself
 The Guidance to the act issued under Section 182 of the Act
 Secondary regulations issued under the Act
 The licensing authority’s own statement of licensing policy
 The application, including the operating schedule submitted as part of the 

application
 Relevant representations.

10. The application to transfer a premises licence involves the provision of all relevant 
information required under the Act to the licensing authority. If the licensing authority 
receives a police objection notice that is not withdrawn, it must hold a hearing to 
consider the objection notice (unless all parties agree that this is unnecessary). 

11. The police may submit an objection notice to an application to transfer a premises 
licence when relevant to the promotion of the four licensing objectives.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

Premises licence transfer

12. A premises licence transfer application was received on 3 May 2017 to remove 
Sawindar Singh Sandhu and Naresh Kumar as the premises licence holders of Best 
Food & Wine and to specify Pushparani Arulrajah as the new premises licence holder. 

13. On 3 May 2017 consents were received from Sawindar Singh Sandhu and Naresh 
Kumar to transfer the premises licence for Best Food & Wine to Pushparani Arulrajah.

14. The effect of an application to transfer a premises licence is that it will have immediate 
interim effect unless an objection is received from the police.

15. A copy of this application is attached as Appendix A

The police objection 

16. The police upon receipt of the application to transfer the premises licence holder from 
Sawindar Singh Sandhu and Naresh Kumar to Pushparani Arulrajah submitted an 
objection notice on 11 May 2017, on the grounds of crime and disorder.

17. The police state that on Thursday the 4 May 2017 the licensing sub - committee were 
set to hear evidence from the responsible authorities regarding a catalogue of breaches 
of the premises licence, and evidence of a number of criminal offences. The 
recommendation from all responsible authorities involved was that the premises licence 
be revoked.

18. Additionally the police state on the 3 May 2017 the day before the licensing sub 
committee hearing an application was received from Pushparani Arulrajah to transfer 
the premises licence.

19. The police state that under the licensing act 2003 an application to transfer the 
premises licence can become effective immediately. This then puts the applicant in the 
place of the premises licence holder, until either the licence is granted and the transfer 
is completed or the application is refused or withdrawn.

20. The police state that In effect if the review hearing were to go ahead then the review 
would be on the actions of the previous premises licence holder.

56



21. On the day of the hearing the police state that they were given a copy of a lease 
agreement between the applicant for the transfer and the current premises licence 
holders.

22. The police sate that the lease was between the current premises licence holder Naresh 
Kumar and Paramjit Kaur and two individuals as detailed on the lease Ajanthini 
Arularajah amd Geethanjali Arularajah. The applicant for the transfer gave their name 
as Pushparani Arulrajah. The police state that whilst the surname appears to be the 
same, the applicant for the transfer and those detailed on the lease agreement don’t 
seem to be the same people.

23. The police also state that the lease agreement had not been signed by the new tenants 
and therefore cannot be accepted as a full and proper lease agreement.

24. Of concern to the police is that the landlord for the premises known as Best Food & 
Wine remains to be the current premises licence holder Naresh Kumar. The police in 
their objection state this would still give Mr Kumar overall control of the premises.

25. The police state in the objection that in this case there are exceptional circumstance as 
to why this transfer should be refused, under the grounds that it would undermine the 
prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective.

26. The police state that the premise licence is subject to a review in relation to the 
prevention of crime and disorder. The application to transfer the licence was submitted 
a day before the hearing and the police believe this has been done to circumvent the 
licensing hearing process.

27. A copy of the police objection is attached as Appendix B.

Consideration by the sub-committee

28. It has not been possible to reach a negotiated outcome of this matter and the sub-
committee is asked to consider whether the police objection notice is upheld under the 
necessity to promote the licensing objective of crime and disorder and refuse the 
application to transfer. 

Operating History

29. A premises licence was issued to Naresh Kumar and Sawindar Singh in respect of the 
premises on 2 October 2005. Mr Kumar was specified, and remains, the DPS of the 
premises.

30. On 9 May 2011 this council’s trading standards service submitted an application for the 
review of the premises licence issued in respect of the premises. A licensing sub-
committee hearing was held on 29 June 2011 to determine the application. The 
licensing sub-committee modified the licence by imposing four conditions on the 
premises licence. A copy of notice of decision in regards to the hearing of 29 June 2011 
is attached to this report as part of the licensing responsible authority’s representation 
in Appendix B.

31. On 9 October 2008 a licensing inspection of the premises were undertaken. It was 
noted that the premises licence summary was not displayed at the premises and the 
premises licence was not available at the premises in breach of section 57 of the 
Licensing Act 2003. A warning letter was sent to the premises in regards to this matter. 
On 7 November 2008a re-visit of the premises was undertaken and the premises were 
found to be being operated compliantly. 

57



32. On 8 October 2009 a licensing inspection of the premises was undertaken and the 
premises were found to be being operated compliantly.

33. On 4 February 2010 a licensing inspection of the premises was undertaken and the 
premises were found to be being operated compliantly.

 
34. On 3 February 2011 a licensing inspection of the premises was undertaken and the 

premises were found to be being operated compliantly.

35. On 22 June 2011 a licensing inspection of the premises was undertaken and the 
premises were found to be being operated compliantly.

36. On 28 March 2013 a licensing inspection of the premises was undertaken. Various 
breaches of the premises licence issued in respect of the premises and a potential 
breach of section 57 of the Act were noted.

37. No TEN’s have been submitted in regards to the premises.

38. On 7 March 2017, an application was submitted by this council’s trading standards 
service under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003, for the review of the premises 
licence held by Sawindar Singh and Naresh Kumar in respect of the premises known 
as Best Food and Wine, 171 Queens Road, London SE15 2ND.

39. The review application was submitted in respect of the prevention of crime and disorder 
licensing objective and in summary states that the following has been witnessed  and / 
or taken place at the premises:

 Duty evaded alcohol for sale in contravention of The Customs and Excise 
Management Act 1979

 Duty evaded alcohol for sale bearing counterfeit trademarks and “Duty Stamp” in 
contravention of the Trade Marks Act 1994 and Duty Stamp Regulations 2006

 Offer to supply alcohol that cannot legally be sold in contravention of the 
Consumer Protection from Unfair Trading Regulations 2008

 Offer for sale of unsafe goods in contravention of the Consumer Protection Act 
1987.

40. The premises were the subject of a review on 29 June 2011 for alleged offences 
including the sale of counterfeit wine. Trading standards say that the licensees have 
learnt nothing since the last review of the premises licence.

41. The trading standards service in the review application stated that they do not have 
confidence in Mr Kumar’s (joint licensee and DPS of the premises) management of the 
business. The option of a change of DPS is not recommended by trading standards 
because Mr Kumar acts as a sole trader and would still retain control of the premises. 
The trading standards service suggested in the review application that the licensing 
sub-committee consider the revocation of the premises licence.

42. Full details of the grounds for the review are attached as Appendix D.

43. On 4 May 2017 a licensing sub-committee was due to hear the review application 
submitted by trading Standards. On the 3 May 2017 a transfer application was 
submitted to Southwark Council licensing unit and the Review hearing listed for the 4 

May 2017 was postposed.

44. The notice of postponement is attached to this report as Appendix E.

58



45. On the 12 May 2017 correspondence was received from the legal representative of the 
applicant in regards to the lease and agreement. This correspondence is attached to 
this report as Appendix F.

46. A copy of the Lease and agreement is attached to this report as Appendix G and 
Appendix H. 

47. On the 17 May 2017 an application to change the Designated Premises Supervisor of 
the premises to Pushparani Arulrajah was received by Southwark Council licensing 
unit.

48. A copy of this Change of DPS application is attached to this report as Appendix I.

The local area

49. A map of the area is attached to this report as Appendix J. The premises is identified at 
the centre of the map. 

Community impact statement

50. Members are advised that under the Act, the only matter to which consideration may be 
given in this instance is the pursuit of the crime and disorder objective.

51. Each application is required by law to be considered upon its own individual merits with 
all relevant matters taken into account.

Southwark council statement of licensing policy

52. Council assembly approved Southwark’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2011-14 on 12 
October 2011. Sections of the statement that are considered to be of particular 
relevance to this application are:

 Section 3 - Purpose and scope of the policy. This reinforces the four licensing 
objectives and the fundamental principles upon which this authority relies in 
determining licence applications

 Section 5 – Determining applications for premises licences and club premises 
certificates. This explains how the policy works and considers issues such as 
location; high standards of management; and the principles behind condition 
setting.

 Section 6 – Local cumulative impact policies. This sets out this authority’s 
approach to cumulative impact and defines the boundaries of the current special 
policy areas and the classifications of premises to which they apply. To be read in 
conjunction with Appendix B to the policy

 Section 7 – Hours of operation. This provides a guide to the hours of licensed 
operation that this authority might consider appropriate by type of premises and 
(planning) area classification.

 Section 8 – The prevention of crime and disorder. This provides general guidance 
on the promotion of the first licensing objective

 Section 9 – Public safety. This provides general guidance on the promotion of the 
second licensing objective

59



 Section 10 – The prevention of nuisance. This provides general guidance on the 
promotion of the third licensing objective

 Section 11 – The protection of children from harm. This provides general 
guidance on the promotion of the fourth licensing objective.

53. The purpose of Southwark’s statement of licensing policy is to make clear to applicants 
what considerations will be taken into account when determining applications and 
should act as a guide to the sub-committee when considering the applications. 
However, the sub-committee must always consider each application on its own merits 
and allow exceptions to the normal policy where these are justified by the 
circumstances of the application.

Resource implications

54. A fee of £23.00 has been paid by the applicant in respect of this application being the 
statutory fee payable for the transfer of a premises licence. 

Consultations

55. Consultation has been carried out on this application in accordance with the provisions 
of the Licensing Act 2003. 

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy 

56. The sub-committee is asked to determine the application for the transfer of a premises 
licence under Section 42 of the Licensing Act 2003.

57. The principles which sub-committee members must apply are set out below.

Principles for making the determination

58. The general principle is that applications for the transfer of a premises licence must be 
granted unless a police objection notice is received.  This is subject to the proviso that 
the applicant has complied with regulations in submitting the application.

59. An application to transfer a premises licence under section 42 shall be in the form and 
shall contain the information set out in the application and accompanied by the 
prescribed fee.

60. If a relevant police objection notice is received then the sub-committee must have 
regard to them, in determining whether it is necessary for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives.

Reasons

61. If the sub-committee determines that it is necessary to refuse the application to transfer 
the premises licence, it must give reasons for its decision.

Hearing procedures

62. Subject to the licensing hearing regulations, the licensing sub-committee may 
determine its own procedures. Key elements of the regulations are that:

60



 The hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority.  Cross- 
examination shall not be permitted unless the authority considered that it is 
required for it to consider the representations.

 Members of the authority are free to ask any question of any party or other person 
appearing at the hearing.

 The committee must allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in which 
to exercise their rights to:

o Address the authority
o If given permission by the committee, question any other party
o In response to a point which the authority has given notice it will require 

clarification, give further information in support of their application.

 The committee shall disregard any information given by a party which is not 
relevant to the particular application before the committee and the licensing 
objectives.

 The hearing shall be in public, although the committee may exclude the public 
from all or part of a hearing where it considers that the public interest in doing so 
outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking 
place in private.

 In considering any representations or notice made by a party the authority may 
take into account documentary or other information produced by a party in 
support of their application, representations or notice (as applicable) either before 
the hearing or, with the consent of all the other parties, at the hearing.

63. This matter relates to the determination of an application for a premises licence under 
section 42 of the Licensing Act 2003. Regulation 26(1) (a) requires the sub-committee 
to make its determination at the conclusion of the hearing.

Council’s multiple roles and the role of the licensing sub-committee

64. Members should note that the licensing sub-committee is meeting on this occasion 
solely to perform the role of licensing authority. The sub-committee sits in quasi-judicial 
capacity, and must act impartially. It must offer a fair and unbiased hearing of the 
application. In this case, members should disregard the council’s broader policy 
objectives and role as statutory authority in other contexts. Members must direct 
themselves to making a determination solely based upon the licensing law, guidance 
and the council’s statement of licensing policy.

65. As a quasi-judicial body the licensing sub-committee is required to consider the 
application on its merits. The sub-committee must take into account only relevant 
factors, and ignore irrelevant factors. The decision must be based on evidence, that is 
to say material, which tends logically to show the existence or non-existence of relevant 
facts, or the likelihood or unlikelihood of the occurrence of some future event, the 
occurrence of which would be relevant.  The licensing sub-committee must give fair 
consideration to the contentions of all persons entitled to make representations to them.

66. The licensing sub-committee is entitled to consider events outside of the premises if 
they are relevant, i.e. are properly attributable to the premises being open. The 
proprietors do not have to be personally responsible for the incidents for the same to be 
relevant. However, if such events are not properly attributable to the premises being 
open, then the evidence is not relevant and should be excluded.  Guidance is that the 
licensing authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities taking place 

61



at the licensed premises on members of the public, living, working or engaged in 
normal activity in the area concerned.

67. Members will be aware of the council’s code of conduct which requires them to declare 
personal and prejudicial interests. The code applies to members when considering 
licensing applications. In addition, as a quasi-judicial body, members are required to 
avoid both actual bias, and the appearance of bias.

68. The sub-committee can only consider matters within the application that have been 
raised through the objection notice submitted by the police. This will be decided on a 
case to case basis.

69. Under the Human Rights Act 1998, the sub-committee needs to consider the balance 
between the rights of the applicant and those making objection to the application when 
making their decision. The sub-committee has a duty under section 17 Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 when making its decision to do all it can to prevent crime and 
disorder in the borough.

70. All interested parties have the right to appeal the decision of the sub-committee to the 
magistrates’ court within a period of 21 days beginning with the day on which the 
applicant was notified by the licensing authority of the decision to be appealed against.

Guidance

71. Members are required to have regard to the DCMS guidance in carrying out the 
functions of licensing authority.  However, guidance does not cover every possible 
situation, so long as the guidance has been properly and carefully understood, 
members may depart from it if they have reason to do so.  Full reasons must be given if 
this is the case.  

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

72. The head of community safety and enforcement has confirmed that the costs of this 
process are borne by the service.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background papers Held At Contact
Licensing Act 2003
Home Office revised guidance to the 
Act
Secondary Regulations
Southwark Statement of Licensing 
Policy Case file

Southwark Licensing, c/o 
Community Safety and 
Enforcement
160 Tooley Street 
London 
SE1 2QH

Kirty Read
Phone number: 020 
7525 5748

62



APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix A Copy of the transfer application
Appendix B Police objection
Appendix C Copy of the premises licence
Appendix D Trading standards review application
Appendix E Notice of postponement of Hearing from licensing sub-committee on 

4 May 2017
Appendix F Submission from legal representative acting on behalf of transfer 

applicant
Appendix G Lease 
Appendix H Agreement
Appendix I Copy of change of designated premises supervisor application
Appendix J Map 

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Deborah Collins, Strategic Director of Environment and Social 
Regeneration

Report Author Richard Kalu, Licensing Enforcement Officer
Version Final

Dated 22 May 2017
Key Decision? No

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 
MEMBER

Officer Title Comments sought Comments included
Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance

Yes Yes

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 26 May 2017

63



APPENDIX A64



65



66



67



68



69



Working for a safer Southwark 

The Licensing Unit Metropolitan Police Service 
Floor 3 Licensing Office 
160 Tooley Street Southwark Police Station, 

London 
SE1 2QH 

323 Borough High Street, 

LONDON, 

SE1 1JL 

Tel:     020 7232 6756  
Email: SouthwarkLicensing@met.police.uk        

Our reference: MD/21/ 2959/17 

Date: 11
th

 May 2017

Dear Sir/Madam 

Re: Pushparani Arulrajah, Best Food & Wine 171 Queens Road SE15 2ND 

Police are in possession of an application from the above to transfer the premises 
licence ref 834717. 

The above premises was subject of an application for a review of the premises 
licence under the licensing act 2003. 
On Thursday the 4

th
 May 2017 the licensing subcommittee were set to hear evidence

from the responsible authorities regarding a catalogue of breaches of the premises 
licence, and evidence of a number of criminal offences. The recommendation from 
all responsible authorities involved was that the premises licence be revoked. 

On the 3
rd

 May 2017 the day before the licensing sub committee hearing an
application was received from Pushparani Arulrajah to transfer the premises licence. 

Under the licensing act 2003 an application to transfer the premises licence can 
become effective immediately. This then puts the applicant in the place of the 
premises licence holder, until either the licence is granted and the transfer is 
completed or the application is refused or withdrawn. 
In effect if the review hearing were to go ahead then the review would be on the 
actions of the previous premises licence holder.  

On the day of the hearing I was also given a copy of a lease agreement between the 
applicant for the transfer and the current premises licence holders. 
I note that the lease was between the current premises licence holder Naresh Kumar 
& Paramjit Kaur and two individuals as detailed on the lease Ajanthini Arularajah & 
Geethanjali Arularajah.  
The applicant for the transfer gave their name as Pushparani Arulrajah. Whilst the 
surname appears to be the same, the applicant for the transfer and those detailed on 
the lease agreement don’t seem to me the same people. 

APPENDIX B70



Working for a safer Southwark 

I also note that the lease agreement had not been signed by the new tenants and 
therefore cannot be accepted as a full and proper lease agreement. 

Of concern to the Police is that the landlord for the premises known as best Food & 
Wine remains to be the current premises licence holder Naresh Kumar. This would in 
my opinion still give Mr Kumar overall control of the premises. 
As I write this report It is not clear if the lease agreement is full and proper, there has 
been no other documentation provided that this transfer is full and proper. 

I believe that in this case there are exceptional circumstance as to why this transfer 
should be refused, under the grounds that it would undermine the prevention of 
crime and disorder licensing objective. 

The premise licence is subject to a review in relation to the prevention of crime and 
disorder. The application to transfer the licence was submitted a day before the 
hearing, in my opinion, to circumvent the licensing hearing process.  
The lease provided on the day has not been signed by the new tenants, and 
ultimately, control of the premises still remains to be the current premises licence 
holder. 

Submitted for consideration 

Ian Clements PC 362MD 

Southwark Police Licensing Unit 

Tel:   0207 232 6756 

71



APPENDIX C 

Premises licence number         834717 

Part 1 - Premises details  

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

BEST FOOD AND WINE 
171 Queens Road 
London 
SE15 2ND 

Ordnance survey map reference (if applicable), 
176749535067 
Post town 
London 

Post code 
SE15 2ND 

Telephone number 
020 7277 5177 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises 

The opening hours of the premises  
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies 
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 of the full premises licence 

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises 
Monday  08:00 - 23:00 
Tuesday      08:00 - 23:00 
Wednesday        08:00 - 23:00 

Environmental Health & Trading Standards 
Licensing Unit 

Chaplin Centre 
Thurlow Street 

London SE17 2DG 

Page 1 of 7 

72



Thursday            08:00 - 23:00 
Friday                 08:00 - 23:00 
Saturday             08:00 - 23:00 
Sunday               10:00 - 22:30 

Page 2 of 7 

73



Part 2  
  
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises 
licence  
Sawindar Sandhu Singh 
25 Newlyn Road 
Welling 
Kent 
DA16 3LH 
07956 127 681 

Naresh Kumar 
255 Northumberland Avenue 
Welling 
Kent 
DA16 2QF 
07957 621 148 

 

 
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) 

 
Name, address and  telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises 
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol  
 
Naresh Kumar 
255 Northumberland Avenue 
Welling 
Kent 
DA16 2AF 
 
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises 
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol  
Licence No. 05/01358 
Authority L B Bexley  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Licence Issue date 21/07/2011 
  
 
 

…...………………………………. 
Community Safety Enforcement 

Business Unit Manger 
Chaplin Centre 
Thurlow Street 

London SE17 2DG  
020 7525 5748 

licensing@southwark.gov.uk
 

Page 3 of 7 

74



Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions  
 

100 No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence - 

a.At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect 

of the Premises Licence; or 

b.At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a 

Personal   Licence or h is Personal Licence is suspended. 

101 Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or 

authorised by, a person who holds a Personal Licence. 

488 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder 

shall ensure that an age verification policy applies to the premises 

in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

(2). The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible 

person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be 

specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served 

alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a 

holographic mark. 

 

Page 4 of 7 

75



 Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule  
  
124 Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied except during the permitted 

hours. In this condition the permitted hours means: 

a.On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, 8.00.a.m. to 11.00.p.m. 

b.On Sundays, other than Christmas Day, 10.00.a.m. to 10.30.p.m. 

c.On  Christmas day, 12 noon to 3.00.p.m. and 7.00.p.m. to 10.30.p.m. 

d.On Good Friday, 8.00.a.m. to 10.30.p.m. 

The above restrictions do not prohibit: 

i)During the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of 

the alcohol from the premises, unl ess the alcohol is supplied or 

taken in an open vessel 

ii)The ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the 

dispatch by the vendor of the alcohol so ordered; 

iii)The sale of alcohol to a trader or club for the purposes of the 

trade or club ; 

iv)The sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a 

canteen in which the sale or supply of alcohol is carried out under 

the authority of the Secretary of State or an authorised mess of 

members of Her Majesty's naval, military or air forces . 

125 Alcohol shall not be sold in an open container or be consumed in the 

licensed premises. 

127 Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied unless it is paid for before or 

at the time when it is sold or supplied, except alcohol sold or supplied: 

a.With and for consumption at a meal supplied at the same time, 

consumed with the meal and paid for together w ith the meal; 

b.For consumption by a person residing in the premises or his guest 

and paid for together with his accommodation; 

c.To a canteen or mess. 

 

Page 5 of 7 

76



Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority   
 
8AA The premises shall operate an age check 'Challenge 25' policy whereby 

customers purchasing alcohol who look or appear to be under 25 years 

of age will be asked for an approved form of proof of age to verify 

their age. Approved forms shall include a driving licence, passport or 

a PASS approved proof of age card such as the Southwark Proof of Age 

(SPA) card. 

8AB All staff involved in the sale of alcohol shall be trained in the age 

check 'Challenge 25' policy. A record of their training, including the 

dates that each member of staff is trained, shall be available for 

inspection at the premises on request by the Council's authorised 

officers or the Police. 

8AC Age check or 'Challenge 25' signage shall be displayed at entrances to 

the premises, areas where alcohol is displayed for sale and at points 

of sale to inform customers that an age check 'Challenge 25' policy 

applies and proof of age may be required. 

8AI A register of refused sales of alcohol and cigarettes sales, which is clearly marked with the details of the 

premises, address and name of licence holder shall be maintained in order to demonstrate effective 

operation of the policy. The register shall be available for inspection at the premises on request by the 

Council's authorised officers or the Police 

836 A personal licence holder shall be on the premises at all times licensable activities are undertaken. 

 

Page 6 of 7 

77



Annex 4 - Plans - Attached 

  
 
 
Licence No. 834717 

Plan No. N/A 

Plan Date August 2005 

 
 
 

Page 7 of 7 

78



 [Insert details including name and address of licensing authority and application 
reference if any (optional)] 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club 
premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all 
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use 
additional sheets if necessary. 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  

I  Bill Masini  (On behalf of Trading Standards) 
  (Insert name of applicant) 
apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below 

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details  
Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description 
Best Food and Wine 
171 Queens Road 

Post town   London Post code (if known)  SE15 2ND 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if 
known) 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known 

Part 2 - Applicant details 
I am  

Please tick yes 
1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises

b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises

c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the
premises

APPENDIX D79



 
2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)  
 

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) 
below) 

    

 
(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 

 
Please tick 
Mr  Mrs  Miss  Ms  Other title       
 (for example, Rev) 
 
Surname  First names 
             

 
 Please tick yes 
I am 18 years old or over 
 

 
 
Current postal  
address if  
different from 
premises 
address 

      

 
Post town       Post Code       

 
Daytime contact telephone number       
 
E-mail address 
(optional)  

      

 
 
(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 
 
Name and address 
      

Telephone number (if any) 
      
E-mail address (optional)  
      

 

2 

80



 
 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 
 
 Name and address 
 
Southwark Council – Trading Standards 
 
Bill Masini 
Trading Standards Officer 
Community Safety & Enforcement 
3rd Floor Hub 1 
PO Box 64529 
London SE1P 5LX 
 

Telephone number (if any) 
0207 525 2629 
E-mail address (optional)  
bill.masini@southwark.gov.uk 

  
 
This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 
 Please tick one or more boxes 

1) the prevention of crime and disorder  
2) public safety  
3) the prevention of public nuisance  
4) the protection of children from harm  

 
Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1) 
 
Prevention of Crime and disorder –  

• Duty evaded alcohol offered for sale – Customs and Excise Management Act 

1979 

• Duty evaded alcohol bearing counterfeit trade marks and “Duty stamp” – 

Trade Marks Act 1994 and Duty Stamp Regulations 2006 

• Offer to supply alcohol that cannot be legally sold – Consumer Protection 

from Unfair Trading Regulations 2008 

 

 
 

 
 

3 

81



Since 1 January 2007 it has been a requirement of The Duty Stamp Regulations 

2006 that retail bottles of alcohol of proof 30% ABV and higher and packaged in 

sizes of 35cl and larger have to carry a duty stamp to be legal for retail sale. The 

term “fake UK duty stamp” is used to describe a stamp that appears to comply with 

the design specification in the regulations but is not produced on behalf of HMRC or 

the product’s manufacturer or distributor. Where in the case of a manufacturer which 

has its trade mark on this label, the trade mark is also infringed because it has been 

used without the manufacturer’s consent and authorisation. This is an offence under 

The Trade Marks Act 1994. 

 

The term “duty diverted” is used to describe alcohol produced in the UK for export but 

illegally placed on the UK market. Spirits produced for export are not subject to duty 

and must not have labels incorporating duty stamps. Duty diversion takes place when 

alcohol for export is relabelled with fake labels bearing fake UK duty stamps.  

 

On 9 December 2016 Trading Standards carried out an inspection at the premise. 

This was for the purposes of inspecting goods for sale to ensure they complied with 

legislation enforced by Trading Standards and also to ensure there was also 

compliance with the conditions on the Premise Licence and The Licensing Act.  

 

On close examination a large quantity of what is commonly referred to as “duty 

diverted spirits” were on offer for sale. 

 

On the shelf at eye level behind the counter were: 

• 7 x 70cl bottles of Glen’s vodka (37.5% ABV). The rear labels on all the 

bottles had been replaced with a fake label bearing a fake UK duty stamp.  

On the lowest shelf behind the counter were: 

• 2 x 70cl bottles of Glen’s vodka (37.5% ABV). The rear labels on both bottles 

had been replaced with a fake label bearing a fake UK duty stamp. 

On another shelf were: 

• 4 x 70cl bottles of High Commissioner blended Scotch whisky (40% ABV). 

The rear labels on all the bottles had been replaced with a fake label bearing 

a fake UK duty stamp. 

On another shelf were: 

• 2 x 70cl bottles of High Commissioner blended Scotch whisky (40% ABV). 

The rear labels on both bottles had been replaced with a fake label bearing a 

fake UK duty stamp 

On another shelf were: 

4 

82



• 5 x 70cl bottles of Smirnoff vodka (37.5% ABV). The rear labels on all the 

bottles had been replaced with a fake label bearing a fake UK duty stamp 

On another shelf was: 

• 1 x 1 litre bottle of Smirnoff vodka (37.5% ABV). The rear label on the bottle 

had been replaced with a fake label bearing a fake UK duty stamp 

On another shelf were: 

• 2 x 70cl bottles of Bells blended Scotch whisky (40% ABV). The rear labels 

on both bottles had been replaced with a fake label bearing a fake UK duty 

stamp. 

 

In the basement of the shop was: 

• 1 box containing 6 x 1 litre bottles of Glen’s vodka. The box had the words 

“UK DUTY STAMP” printed on the side to indicate it was manufactured for 

the UK market. These words had been inked out with a black pen. This is an 

indication that an outer box of UK market stock was sold for export. The box 

also had evidence of having been opened and resealed with clear tape.(see 

photograph 1). On examination, it was evident the rear labels on bottles 

inside had been replaced with fake labels bearing fake UK duty stamp 

• 1 box containing 12 x 70cl bottles of Glen’s vodka. The box had the words 

“UK DUTY STAMP” printed on the side to indicate it was manufactured for 

the UK market. Once again these words had been inked out with a black pen. 

This is an indication that an outer box of UK market stock was sold for export. 

The box also had evidence of having been opened and resealed with clear 

tape. On examination, it was evident the rear labels on bottles inside had 

been replaced with fake labels bearing fake UK duty stamp. 

• 2 boxes each containing 6 x 70cl bottles of Bells blended Scotch whisky. The 

box had the words “UK DUTY STAMP” printed on the side to indicate it was 

manufactured for the UK market. Again, these words had been inked out with 

a black pen. This is an indication that an outer box of UK market stock was 

sold for export. The box also had evidence of having been opened and 

resealed with clear tape. On examination, it was evident the rear labels of 

bottles inside had been replaced with fake labels bearing fake UK duty stamp. 

The box was very tatty indicating to anyone exercising any diligence that 

there were questions to be asked about the box’s history (see photographs 2 

and 3). 

 

UK market alcohol sold for export is required to have any associated duty stamp 

5 

83



obliterated; this is done by exporters using a either non-removable round sticker or 

by the physical removal (scratching out) of the duty stamp. Having done this it is 

normal for the outer box to have the words “UK DUTY STAMP” obliterated, or 

simply not applied to the box in order to differentiate it from the regular UK market 

stock. This is relevant to the following stock also in the basement: 

• 2 boxes each containing 6 x 70cl bottles of Smirnoff vodka. The boxes did 

NOT have the words “UK DUTY STAMP” printed on the outer box of alcohol. 

This is an indication that it was manufactured for the export market. The outer 

boxes also had evidence of having been opened and resealed with clear 

tape. The rear labels of the bottles had been replaced with fake labels bearing 

a fake UK duty paid stamp. (see photographs 2 & 3) 

 

In total, seized for being non-duty paid duty diverted alcohol (and therefore illegal to 

be sold) were 

• 21 x 70cl bottles of Glen’s vodka 

• 17 x 70cl bottles of Smirnoff vodka 

• 14 x 70cl bottles of Bells whisky 

• 6 x 70cl bottles of High Commissioner whisky 

• 1 x 1 litre bottle of Smirnoff vodka 

• 6 x 1 litre bottles of Glen’s vodka 

 

The rate of alcohol duty on a 70cl 37.5% ABV spirit was £7.41 (£8.89 inc VAT) up to 

23 March 2015 and is currently £7.26 (£8.71 inc VAT). 

The rate of alcohol duty on a 70cl 40% ABV spirit was £7.90 (£9.48 inc VAT) up to 23 

March 2015 and is currently £7.74 (£9.29 inc VAT) 

The rate of alcohol duty on a 1 litre 37.5% ABV spirit was £10.58 (£12.70 inc VAT) up 

to 23 March 2015 and is currently £10.37 (£12.45 inc VAT) 

The rate of alcohol duty on a 1 litre 40% ABV spirit was £11.29 (£13.55 inc VAT) up 

to 23 March 2015 and is currently £11.06 (£13.27 inc VAT) 

 

The duty and VAT therefore evaded for these spirits (taking the current lower duty 

rates) totals: 

 

38 x 8.71 = £330.98 [Glens & Smirnoff 70cl bottles] 

20 x 9.29 = £185.80 [Bells & High Commissioner 70cl bottles] 

1 x 13.29 = £13.29 [1 litre Smirnoff] 

6 x 12.45 = £149.40 [1 litre Glen’s] 

6 

84



 

Total = £679.47 
These items were seized because it was not legal for them to be sold.  It is not clear 

how many other similar such items had been previously sold. Bottles that were 

legitimate, as can be seen in the photographs, were left in the shop  

 

Also offered for sale were so called super strength beers. These drinks are almost 

exclusively consumed by people who have a serious alcohol addiction problem and 

contain a high number of units of alcohol per can. These people often have mental 

health issues and live a chaotic lifestyle. This in turn can mean they become so 

called “street drinkers”. In doing so they may create a public nuisance and commit 

anti–social behaviour type offences such as aggressive begging and urinating in 

public places.   

The duty payable including VAT on these beers with an ABV of 8% sold in 500ml 

cans is £1.15. This premise had quantities of such beers (Tennents Super, Skol 

Super, Carlsberg Special Brew and Kestrel Super) priced for sale at £1.50 (see 

photograph 4); a difference of 35 pence to account for all the manufacturers’ costs, 

their transportation costs and profit, the wholesalers’ mark up and the retailer’s mark 

up. Suspicious these drinks were also subject to some form of evaded duty or other 

illegality, Trading Standards required the owner to produce his invoices for these 

drinks. Invoices that were later produced showing drinks of these brands purchased, 

indicated a price of £36.99 plus Vat (i.e £44.39) or £1.85 per can.  

 

The premise licence holder was required to produce his purchase invoices for the 

spirits seized and the super strength beers. It is an offence to fail to produce 

traceable invoices (alcohol falling within the definition of food) under The General 

Food Hygiene Regulations 2013. 

 

On 30 January 2017 Nuresh Kumar was interviewed under caution and in 

accordance with the requirements of The Police and Criminal Evidence Act. He 

brought with him purchase invoices stating these related to the products he had sold 

or had offered for sale, presumably expecting Trading Standards to simply accept 

these to be the complete records for his purchases. 

 

Those invoices indicated the following purchases in 2016 up to the date of the visit: 

• Glen’s vodka (70cl) -  60 bottles   

30 January 2016 – 12 

27 February 2016 – 18 

7 

85



21 October 2016 – 12 

19 November 2016 – 18 

 

• Smirnoff vodka (70cl) – 36 bottles 

20 February 2016 – 12 [price marked £13.79] 

21 February 2016 – 12 [price marked £13.79] 

19 November 2016 – 12 

 

• Bells whisky (70cl) – 12 bottles 

19 November 2016 – 12 

 

• High Commissioner whisky – 6 bottles 

19 November 2016 – 6 

 

• Smirnoff (1 litre) – 0 

 

• Glen’s (1 litre) – 6 bottles 

19 November 2016 – 6 

 

Taking into account items seized and legitimate products left in the shop, this 

indicated at face value that in 2016 Mr Kumar had sold very few of these brands. 

Trading Standards say he had sold a significant but unknown quantity because he 

bought the items seized (and sold an unknown number before the inspection) from 

an unauthorised source either knowing they were illegal in some form or simply 

closed his eyes to that fact. Trading Standards say it is important to note the time 

gaps between when legitimate drinks were purchased.  

For example the invoices show no 70cl bottles of Smirnoff appear to have been 

purchased over a 9 month period between 21 February and 19 November. 

The paperwork indicates no 70cl bottles of Glen’s vodka were bought over an eight 

month period between 27 February and 21 October.  

During a long interview, Mr Kumar stated that a man [purporting to be] from a Cash & 

Carry in East London had visited the shop around mid/late August. He had not 

previously heard of that Cash & Carry. He went on to say the man offered him the 

alcohol that was subsequently seized. The man had apparently shown him a 

business card from this Cash and Carry which Mr Kumar (who said he does all the 

buying for the business) took to confirm he was from this particular Cash and Carry. 

Apparently this man was unable to give an invoice or paperwork to show this Cash 

8 

86



and Carry to be the seller of these items and what Mr Kumar had paid (including VAT 

of course). Mr Kumar said he paid cash and the seller assured him that these items 

would be shown on a future invoice when he made future purchases from that 

business. Mr Kumar said he has bought goods from that Cash & Carry direct in later 

months but no one ever put these items on any future invoice.  

Mr Kumar was not able to say exactly what he bought from this person back in 

August 2016 and could offer no explanation as to how he was going to account for 

these items when completing his business records for the likes of HMRC. 

Asked how much he paid for the alcohol on that occasion he said it was “£300 to 

£400 or something like that”. It is not clear how much alcohol he bought but as stated 

earlier, the duty evaded alone of the seized drink came to nearly £700. Trading 

Standards say, assuming Mr Kumar has given a true account of how the alcohol 

came to be in the shop, that in itself indicates Mr Kumar must have known he was 

buying illegal alcohol. 

 

Throughout the interview, not unreasonably, Mr Kumar said he found the competition 

from the National supermarket chains near to him had made it very difficult for him to 

compete. With that in mind in relation to the “Super Strength Beers”, Trading 

Standards question the legitimacy of why he would then seek to sell these drinks for 

below his cost price and barely above the duty payable. Trading Standards does not 

accept an explanation that it is a “loss leader” in the same way a product such as 

milk or bread may be. People who buy these drinks typically just buy these and very 

little else. Trading Standards believe that whilst some product has been bought 

legitimately (with paperwork to demonstrate this), other such drinks have been 

acquired from a similar or indeed perhaps the same source as the spirits referred to 

in this review. Somewhere along the supply chain duty has been evaded. The 

paperwork for the legitimate product makes it appear that he has sold the drinks  

below cost whereas he has sold an unknown quantity for an unknown profit. 

 

 

Trading Standards say Mr Kumar has learnt nothing since the last review of his 

Premise Licence. The facts this time are very similar to when he offered for sale a 

significant quantity of counterfeit Jacobs Creek Wine. He was not able to 

demonstrate where he had bought that wine from and produced no paperwork. Once 

again he took the same gamble of buying from an unreliable and unknown source 

and failed to ensure he obtained proper paperwork on receipt of those goods. If  his 

account is true, he took the previously unknown “white van man” at face value by 

accepting him to be from a Cash and Carry somewhere in East London that, at the 

9 

87



time, he had never heard of. Mr Kumar is an experienced retailer and has previous 

dealings in counterfeit alcohol. Whilst this alcohol was not counterfeit, he did not 

know that at the time and took the risk of potentially exposing his customers to the 

dangers of cheap and dangerous alcohol. Trading Standards say it is through good 

luck that he did not buy alcohol that could have been highly injurious to health. 

 

Further, whilst never recommended to buy from such a source, Trading Standards 

say an experienced shopkeeper like Mr Kumar, could (and should) have carried out 

simple checks to prevent this problem. The cardboard boxes were either very tatty in 

appearance and/or the “UK DUTY STAMP” writing had been crossed through with a 

black marker pen thereby indicating something was illegal about the products. It 

would appear the purchase price was too tempting for him. 

 

In view of this matter and the previous Premise Licence review (which also included 

underage sales of alcohol to children), Trading Standards does not have confidence 

in Mr Kumar’s management of the business. The option of a change of DPS is not 

recommended because Mr Kumar acts as a sole trader, does all the buying and 

would still retain control.  The Licensing sub- committee is therefore invited to revoke 

the Premise Licence. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 
 

10 

88



 
Please tick yes 

Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before  
 
If yes please state the date of that application 

 May 2011 
 

 

 
 
If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state 
what they were and when you made them 
 
 
Protection of children from harm – 
 
Alcohol and cigarettes sold on two separate occasions over a 6 month period to 15 

year old children. Between the first and second sales the premise licence holder 

attended free training given by Southwark Trading Standards. The seller on both 

occasions was the Premise Licence Holder.  

 

Prevention of Crime and disorder –  
41 bottles of counterfeit Jacob’s Creek wine offered for sale. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11 

89



 
  

Please tick yes 
 I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible 

authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club 
premises certificate, as appropriate 

 

 I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements 
my application will be rejected 

 

       
 
IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON 
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
APPLICATION 
 
Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 3) 
 
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent 
(See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what 
capacity. 
 
Signature      
………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Date              
………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Capacity      Trading Standards Officer acting on behalf of Southwark Council 
………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for 
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5) 
      

Post town 
      

Post Code 
      

Telephone number (if any)        
If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
mail address (optional)       

 
Notes for Guidance  
 

1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 
2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems 

which are included in the grounds for review if available. 
3. The application form must be signed. 
4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf 

provided that they have actual authority to do so. 
5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this 

application. 
 

12 

90



91



92



93



94



NOTICE OF POSTPONEMENT 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE – 4 MAY 2017  

LICENSING ACT 2003: BEST FOOD & WINE, 171 QUEENS ROAD, LONDON SE15 2ND 

1. Adjournment
i. The review application submitted by Trading Standards (dated 7 March 2017) be

postponed to 10.00 am on 12 June 2017.
ii. That time be extended to determine the review application pursuant to regulation 11 of

the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 2005.

2. Reasons
A transfer of the premises licence and designated premises supervisor was received on 3
May 2017.  These applications have a direct and immediate impact on the review application.
Should the Metropolitan Police Service submit a representation objecting to the applications,
then they are to be heard on 12 June 2017 in advance of the review application in respect of
the same premises.

3. Direction
The Licensing Sub-Committee directs that the following documentation be made available at
the hearing on 12 June 2017:
a. Lease between Naresh Kumar, Paramjit Kuar and Ajanthini Arularajah

Geethanjali Arularajah in respect of 171 Queens Road, SE15 2ND or any
subsequent lease to these premises.

b. Any Lease registration documents.
c. Any Business registration documents.
d. Any other documents regarding the ownership of 171 Queens Road, SE15

2ND.

It is also recommended that should any subsequent transfer application for the premises licence 
or application to specify a new designated premises supervisor be received, that they should be 
considered on 12 June 2017.  

Issued by the Constitutional Team on behalf of the Director of Legal Services 

Date: 4 May 2017 

APPENDIX E95



APPENDIX F96



97



98



APPENDIX G99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



APPENDIX H125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



APPENDIX I141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



APPENDIX J
149



Item No. 
7.

Classification:
Open

Date:
12 June 2017

Meeting Name:
Licensing sub-committee

Report title: Licensing Act 2003: Best Food and Wine, 171 Queens 
Road, London SE15 2ND 

Ward(s) or groups affected: Nunhead 

From: Strategic Director of Environment and Social 
Regeneration

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That the licensing sub-committee considers an application submitted by this council’s 
Trading Standards service under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) for the 
review of the premises licence held by Sawindar Singh and Naresh Kumar in respect of 
the premises known as Best Food and Wine, 171 Queens Road, London SE15 2ND.

2. Notes:

a) The grounds for the review are stated in paragraph 13 of this report. A copy of the 
premises licence review application is attached as Appendix A.

b) The review application is supported by representations submitted by responsible 
authorities. Copies of the representations are attached as Appendix B. Details of 
the representations are provided in paragraphs 17 to 20.

c) A copy of the current premises licence issued in respect of the premises is 
attached to this report as Appendix C. A map of the area that the premises are 
located in is attached as Appendix H.

d) A copy of the council’s approved procedure for hearings of the sub-committee in 
relation to an application made under the Licensing Act 2003, along with a copy of 
the hearing regulations, has been circulated to all parties to the meeting. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Licensing Act 2003

3. The Licensing Act 2003 provides a new licensing regime for:

 The sale of and supply of alcohol
 The provision of regulated entertainment
 The provision of late night refreshment.

4.   Within Southwark, the licensing responsibility is wholly administered by this council.

5.    The Act requires the licensing authority to carry out its functions under the Act with a 
view to promoting the four stated licensing objectives. These are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder

150
Agenda Item 7



 The promotion of public safety
 The prevention of nuisance
 The protection of children from harm.

6.   In carrying out its licensing functions, a licensing authority must also have regard to:

 The Act itself
 The guidance to the act issued under Section 182 of the Act
 Secondary regulations issued under the Act
 The licensing authority’s own statement of licensing policy
 The application, including the operating schedule submitted as part of the 

application
 Relevant representations.

7.   The applications process involves the provision of all relevant information required 
under the Act to the licensing authority with copies provided by the applicant to the 
relevant responsible bodies. The application must also be advertised at the premises 
and in the local press. The responsible authorities and other persons within the local 
community may make representations on any part of the application where relevant to 
the four licensing objectives.

8.   The premises licence once issued remains valid for the life of the business unless 
surrendered or revoked. However, under section 51 of the Act it remains open to any 
responsible authority or other person to apply to the local licensing authority for a 
review of the premises licence where there are ongoing concerns regarding one or 
more of the four stated licensing objectives.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

The premises licence

9. The premises licence allows the provision of licensable activities as follows: 

   The sale of alcohol to be consumed off the premises: Monday to Saturday from 
08:00 to 23:00 and Sunday from 10:00 to 22:30

       There are no restrictions in respect of the premises’ standard opening times (it 
can therefore be open 24 hours a day).

10. The licence is subject to the mandatory conditions set down under the Act and further 
conditions consistent with the operating schedule submitted with the application for the 
licence. A copy of the full premises licence is attached as Appendix C.

Designated premises supervisor (DPS)

11. The current designated premises supervisor (DPS) named on the licence is Naresh 
Kumar. Naresh Kumar is also the joint licensee of the premises.

The review application

12. On 7 March 2017, an application was submitted by this council’s trading standards 
service under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003, for the review of the premises 

151



licence held by Sawindar Singh and Naresh Kumar in respect of the premises known 
as Best Food and Wine, 171 Queens Road London SE15 2ND.

13. The review application was submitted in respect of the prevention of crime and disorder 
licensing objective and in summary states that the following has been witnessed  and / 
or taken place at the premises:

 Duty evaded alcohol for sale in contravention of The Customs and Excise 
Management Act 1979

 Duty evaded alcohol for sale bearing counterfeit trademarks and “Duty Stamp” in 
contravention of the Trade Marks Act 1994 and Duty Stamp Regulations 2006

 Offer to supply alcohol that cannot legally be sold in contravention of the 
Consumer Protection from Unfair Trading Regulations 2008

 Offer for sale of unsafe goods in contravention of the Consumer Protection Act 
1987.

14. The premises were the subject of a review on 29 June 2011 for alleged offences 
including the sale of counterfeit wine. Trading standards say that the licensees have 
learnt nothing since the last review of the premises licence.

15. The trading standards service does not have confidence in Mr Kumar’s (joint licensee 
and DPS of the premises) management of the business. The option of a change of 
DPS is not recommended because Mr Kumar acts as a sole trader and would still 
retain control of the premises. The trading standards service suggests that the 
licensing sub-committee considers the revocation of the premises licence.

16. Full details of the grounds for the review are provided within review the application. A 
copy of the review application is attached as Appendix A.

Representations from responsible authorities

17. This council’s director of public health, The Metropolitan Police Service, and this 
council’s licensing responsible authority have submitted representations in support of 
the review application. 

18. The Director of Public Health’s representation is submitted in respect of the prevention 
of crime and disorder, the prevention of public nuisance and the protection of public 
safety licensing objectives. The representation expresses concerns over the offences 
alleged in the review application. The Director of Public Health fully supports that the 
premises licence be reviewed by the licensing sub-committee.

19. The Metropolitan Police Service’s representation expresses concerns over the offences 
alleged in the review application. The representation notes that the alleged offences are 
all considered acts of criminality and are allegedly being committed by an individual 
who has been entrusted to operate licensed premises. The police fully support the 
review application and recommend that consideration be given to the revocation of the 
premises licence.

20. The licensing responsible authority’s representation is submitted in respect of the 
prevention of crime and disorder and the prevention of public nuisance licensing 
objectives. The representation notes that the premises were the subject of a review on 

152



29 June 2011 and includes the notice of decision in regards to that review. The 
representation also refers to a licensing inspection of the premises on 28 March 2013 
where breaches of the premises licence issued in respect of the premises, and a 
potential breach of section 57 of the Act were noted. The representation includes a 
copy of a warning letter sent in respect of the licensing inspection of 28 March 2013. 
The licensing responsible authority are of the opinion that the licensees are not capable 
of running a licensed premises and that the changing of the premises’ DPS would not 
resolve the issues cited in the review application. The licensing responsible authority 
therefore supports the review application and requests that the premises licence be 
revoked as a reasonable, appropriate and proportionate action to take.

21. Copies of the representations are attached as Appendix B.

Representations from other persons

22. No representations have been received by other persons.

Operating History

23. A premises licence was issued to Naresh Kumar and Sawindar Singh in respect of the 
premises on 2 October 2005. Mr Kumar was specified, and remains, the DPS of the 
premises.

24. On 9 May 2011 this council’s trading standards service submitted an application for the 
review of the premises licence issued in respect of the premises. A licensing sub-
committee hearing was held on 29 June 2011 to determine the application. The 
licensing sub-committee modified the licence by imposing four conditions on the 
premises licence. A copy of notice of decision in regards to the hearing of 29 June 2011 
is attached to this report as part of the licensing responsible authority’s representation 
in Appendix B.

25. On 9 October 2008 a licensing inspection of the premises were undertaken. It was 
noted that the premises licence summary was not displayed at the premises and the 
premises licence was not available at the premises in breach of section 57 of the 
Licensing Act 2003. A warning letter was sent to the premises in regards to this matter. 
On 7 November 2008a re-visit of the premises was undertaken and the premises were 
found to be being operated compliantly. 

26. On 8 October 2009 a licensing inspection of the premises was undertaken and the 
premises were found to be being operated compliantly.

27. On 4 February 2010 a licensing inspection of the premises was undertaken and the 
premises were found to be being operated compliantly.

 
28. On 3 February 2011 a licensing inspection of the premises was undertaken and the 

premises were found to be being operated compliantly.

29. On 22 June 2011 a licensing inspection of the premises was undertaken and the 
premises were found to be being operated compliantly.

30. On 28 March 2013 a licensing inspection of the premises was undertaken. Various 
breaches of the premises licence issued in respect of the premises and a potential 
breach of section 57 of the Act were noted.

153



31. No TEN’s have been submitted in regards to the premises.

32. On 7 March 2017, an application was submitted by this council’s trading standards 
service under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003, for the review of the premises 
licence held by Sawindar Singh and Naresh Kumar in respect of the premises known 
as Best Food and Wine, 171 Queens Road, London SE15 2ND.

33. On 3 May 2017 the application to transfer the premises licence, with immediate effect, 
to Pushparani Arulrajah was submitted. The police, upon receipt of the application, 
submitted an objection notice on 11 May 2017, on the grounds of crime and disorder. A 
hearing to determine the transfer application will take place on 4 May 2017 immediately 
prior to the hearing to determine the review application to which this report relates.

34. On 3 May 2017 an application to specify Pushparani Arulrajah as the DPS of the 
premises, with immediate effect was submitted. The application was not fully 
completed. On 17 May 29017, the application was amended and became full and 
proper.

35. On 4 May 2017 it was decided that the hearing to determine the review application as 
per paragraph 30 above be postponed until 12 June 2017. The hearing was postponed 
so that the transfer application and DPS specification application as per paragraphs 31 
and 32 above could determined. The licensing sub committee that the following be 
provided by the 12 June 2017 for their consideration:

 The lease between Naresh Kumar, Paramjit Kuar and Ajanthini Arularajah 
Geethanjali Arularajah in respect of 171 Queens Road SE15 2ND or any 
subsequent lease to these premises

 Any Lease registration documents
 Any Business registration documents
 Any other documents regarding the ownership of 171 Queens Road, London 

SE15 2ND.

36. A copy of the postponement notice is attached as Appendix D.

37. On 12 May 2017 a letter was received from Pushparani Arulrajah’s legal advisor in 
regards to the lease and agreement to transfer the business. The letter is attached to 
this report as Appendix E. Copies of the lease and agreement to transfer the business 
are attached to this report as Appendices F and G.

The local area

38. A map of the local area is attached as Appendix H. The following premises are shown 
on the map and are licensed as stated below:

Bahar Kebab, 157 Queens Road, London SE15 2ND:

 The sale of alcohol to be consumed on and off the premises: Sunday to Thursday 
from 11:00 to 23:00 and Friday and Saturday from 11:00 to 02:00 the following 
day

 Late night refreshment: Sunday to Thursday from 23:00 to 00:00 (midnight) and 
Friday and Saturday from 23:00 to 02:00 the following day

Lions Fried Chicken, 165 Queens Road, London SE15 2ND:

154



 Late night refreshment: Sunday to Thursday from 23:00 to 03:00 the following 
day and Friday and Saturday from 23:00 to 05:00 the following day

Tesco Stores Ltd, 151-155 Queens Road, London SE15 2ND:

 The sale of alcohol to be consumed on and off the premises Monday to Sunday 
from 06:00 to 23:00.

Lucky Gin and The Beautiful Pizza Boy, 169 Queens Road, London SE15 2ND:  

 Late night refreshment: Monday to Thursday from 23:00 to 00:00 and Friday and 
Saturday from 23:00 to 01:00 the following day

 The sale of alcohol to be consumed on and off the premises Monday to Thursday 
from 10:00 to 00:00, Friday and Saturday from 10:00 to 01:00 the following day 
and Sunday from 10:00 to 23:00

Golden Noodle, 175-177 Queens Road, London SE15 2ND:

 Late night refreshment: Monday to Sunday from 23:00 to 00:00 

Mamma Dough, 179 Queens Road, London SE15 2ND:

 The sale of alcohol to be consumed on the premises: Monday to Sunday from 
12:00 to 23:30 

Morley’s Fried Chicken, 189 Queens Road, London SE15 2ND:

 Late night refreshment: Sunday to Thursday from 23:00 to 02:00 the following 
day and Friday and Saturday from 23:00 to 02:30 the following day

Queens Café, 193a Queens Road, London SE15 2NG:

 The sale of alcohol to be consumed on and off the premises: Monday to Sunday 
from 11:00 to 22:30.

Southwark council statement of licensing policy

39. Council assembly approved Southwark’s statement of licensing policy 2016 - 20 on 25 
November 2015. The policy came into effect on 1 January 2016. Sections of the 
statement that are considered to be of particular relevance to the sub-committee’s 
consideration are:

 Section 3 - Purpose and scope of the policy. This reinforces the four licensing 
objectives and the fundamental principles upon which this authority relies in 
determining licence applications

 Section 5 – Determining applications for premises licences and club premises 
certificates. This explains how the policy works and considers issues such as 
location; high standards of management; and the principles behind condition 
setting.

155



 Section 6 – Local cumulative impact policies. This sets out this authority’s 
approach to cumulative impact and defines the boundaries of the current special 
policy areas and the classifications of premises to which they apply. To be read in 
conjunction with Appendix B to the policy

 Section 7 – Hours of operation. This provides a guide to the hours of licensed 
operation that this authority might consider appropriate by type of premises and 
(planning) area classification.

 Section 8 – The prevention of crime and disorder. This provides general guidance 
on the promotion of the first licensing objective

 Section 9 – Public safety. This provides general guidance on the promotion of the 
second licensing objective

 Section 10 – The prevention of nuisance. This provides general guidance on the 
promotion of the third licensing objective

 Section 11 – The protection of children from harm. This provides general 
guidance on the promotion of the fourth licensing objective.

40. The purpose of Southwark’s statement of licensing policy is to make clear to applicants 
what considerations will be taken into account when determining applications and 
should act as a guide to the sub-committee when considering the applications. 
However, the sub-committee must always consider each application on its own merits 
and allow exceptions to the normal policy where these are justified by the 
circumstances of the application.

41. Within Southwark’s statement of licensing policy 2016 - 2020, the premises are 
identified as being within Peckham major town centre area. The closing time 
recommended in the statement of licensing policy for off licences, and grocers or 
supermarkets with off sales of alcohol in the Peckham major town centre area is 00:00 
daily.

Resource implications

42. There is no fee associated with this type of application. 

Consultation

43. Consultation has been carried out on this application in accordance with the provisions 
of the Licensing Act 2003.

Community impact statement

44. Each application is required by law to be considered upon its own individual merits with 
all relevant matters taken into account.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy 

45. The sub-committee is asked to determine, under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003, 
following an application, made under Section 51 of the same act, for a review of 

156



premises licence.  At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence, a responsible 
authority or any other person may ask the licensing authority to review the licence 
because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any of the four licensing 
objectives.

46.   The principles, which sub-committee members must apply, are set out below.

Principles for making the determination

47. Under Section 52 the licensing authority must hold a hearing to determine the review 
and any relevant representations.

48.   The four licensing objectives are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 The protection of public safety
 The prevention of nuisance
 The protection of children from harm.

49. Each objective must be considered to be of equal importance.  The authority must, 
having regard to the application and any relevant representations, take such of the 
following steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
The steps are to:

 Modify the conditions of the licence by altering, omitting or adding any condition
 Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence
 Remove the designated premises supervisor
 Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months
 Revoke the licence.

50. For the purpose of determining a relevant representation under section 52 of the Act a 
“relevant representation” means representations which:

 Are relevant to one or more of the licensing objectives
 Are made by the holder of the premises licence, a responsible authority or an 

other person within the prescribed period
 Have not been withdrawn
 If made by an other person (who is not also a responsible authority), that they are 

not, in the opinion of the relevant licensing authority frivolous or vexatious.

51. Modifications of conditions and exclusions of licensable activities may be imposed 
either permanently or for a temporary period of up to three months.

52. The authority may decide that no action is necessary if it finds that the review does not 
require it to take any steps appropriate to promote the licensing objectives.

53. In deciding what remedial action if any it should take, the authority must direct its mind 
to the causes or concerns that the representations identify. The remedial action should 
generally be directed at these causes and should always be no more than an 
appropriate and proportionate response.

157



54. It is of particular importance that any detrimental financial impact that may result from a 
licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and proportionate to the promotion of the 
licensing objectives in the circumstances that gave rise to the application for review.

Reasons

55. Where the authority determines an application for review it must notify the 
determination and reasons why for making it to:

 The holder of the licence
 The applicant
 Any person who made relevant representations
 The chief officer of police for the area (or each police area) in which the premises 

are situated.

Hearing procedures

56. Subject to the licensing hearing regulations, the licensing committee may determine its 
own procedures. Key elements of the regulations are that:

 The hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority. Cross 
examination shall not be permitted unless the authority considered that it is 
required for it to consider the representations

 Members of the authority are free to ask any question of any party or other 
person appearing at the hearing

 The committee must allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in which 
to exercise their rights to:

o Address the authority
o If given permission by the committee, question any other party.
o In response to a point which the authority has given notice it will require 

clarification, give further information in support of their application.

 The committee shall disregard any information given by a party which is not 
relevant:

o To the particular application before the committee, and 
o The licensing objectives.

 The hearing shall be in public, although the committee may exclude the public 
from all or part of a hearing where it considers that the public interest in doing so 
outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking 
place in private.

 In considering any representations or notice made by a party the authority may 
take into account documentary or other information produced by a party in 
support of their application, representations or notice (as applicable) either before 
the hearing or, with the consent of all the other parties, at the hearing. 

158



57. This matter relates to the review of the premises licence under section 51 of the 
Licensing Act 2003. Regulation 26(1) (a) requires the sub-committee to make its 
determination at the conclusion of the hearing.

Council’s multiple roles and the role of the licensing sub-committee

58. Sub-committee members will note that, in relation to this application, the council has 
multiple roles. Council officers from various departments have been asked to consider 
the application from the perspective of the council as authority responsible respectively 
for environmental health, trading standards, health and safety and as the planning 
authority.

59. Members should note that the licensing sub-committee is meeting on this occasion 
solely to perform the role of licensing authority. The sub-committee sits in quasi-judicial 
capacity, and must act impartially. It must offer a fair and unbiased hearing of the 
application. In this case, members should disregard the council’s broader policy 
objectives and role as statutory authority in other contexts. Members must direct 
themselves to making a determination solely based upon the licensing law, guidance 
and the council’s statement of licensing policy.

60. As a quasi-judicial body the licensing sub-committee is required to consider the 
application on its merits. The sub-committee must take into account only relevant 
factors, and ignore irrelevant factors. The decision must be based on evidence, that is 
to say material, which tends logically to show the existence or non-existence of 
relevant facts, or the likelihood or unlikelihood of the occurrence of some future event, 
the occurrence of which would be relevant. The licensing sub-committee must give fair 
consideration to the contentions of all persons entitled to make representations to 
them.

61. The licensing sub-committee is entitled to consider events outside of the premises if 
they are relevant, i.e. are properly attributable to the premises being open. The 
proprietors do not have to be personally responsible for the incidents for the same to 
be relevant. However, if such events are not properly attributable to the premises being 
open, then the evidence is not relevant and should be excluded. Guidance is that the 
licensing authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities taking place 
at the licensed premises on members of the public, living, working or engaged in 
normal activity in the area concerned.

62. Members will be aware of the council’s code of conduct which requires them to declare 
personal and prejudicial interests. The code applies to members when considering 
licensing applications. In addition, as a quasi-judicial body, members are required to 
avoid both actual bias, and the appearance of bias.

63. The sub-committee can only consider matters within the application that have been 
raised through representations from other persons and responsible authorities.   

64. Under the Human Rights Act 1998, the sub committee needs to consider the balance 
between the rights of the applicant and those making representations to the application 
when making their decision. The sub-committee has a duty under section 17 Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 when making its decision to do all it can to prevent crime and 
disorder in the borough.

65. Other persons, responsible authorities and the applicant have the right to appeal the 
decision of the sub-committee to the magistrates’ court within a period of 21 days 

159



beginning with the day on which the applicant was notified by the licensing authority of 
the decision to be appealed against.

Guidance

66. Members are required to have regard to the Home Office revised guidance in carrying 
out the functions of licensing authority.  However, guidance does not cover every 
possible situation, so long as the guidance has been properly and carefully understood, 
members may depart from it if they have reason to do so.  Full reasons must be given if 
this is the case.

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

67. The head of community safety and enforcement has confirmed that the costs of this 
process are borne by the service.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background papers Held At Contact
Licensing Act 2003
Home Office revised guidance to the 
Act
Secondary Regulations
Southwark Statement of Licensing 
Policy Case file

Southwark Licensing, c/o 
Community Safety and 
Enforcement
160 Tooley Street
London 
SE1 2QH

Kirty Read
Phone number: 020 
7525 5748

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix A Copy of the review application
Appendix B Copies of the representations submitted by a responsible authorities
Appendix C Copy of the premises licence
Appendix D Copy of the postponement notice
Appendix E Copy of letter from Pushparani Arulrajah’s legal advisor
Appendix F Copy of the lease
Appendix G Copy of the agreement to transfer the business
Appendix H Map 

160



AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Deborah Collins, Strategic Director of Environment and Social 
Regeneration

Report Author Wesley McArthur, Principal Licensing Officer
Version Final

Dated 26 May 2017
Key Decision? No

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 
MEMBER

Officer Title Comments sought Comments included
Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance

Yes Yes

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 31 May 2017

161



 [Insert details including name and address of licensing authority and application 
reference if any (optional)] 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club 
premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all 
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use 
additional sheets if necessary. 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  

I  Bill Masini  (On behalf of Trading Standards) 
  (Insert name of applicant) 
apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below 

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details  
Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description 
Best Food and Wine 
171 Queens Road 

Post town   London Post code (if known)  SE15 2ND 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if 
known) 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known 

Part 2 - Applicant details 
I am  

Please tick yes 
1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises

b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises

c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the
premises

                         APPENDIX A 162



 
2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)  
 

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) 
below) 

    

 
(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 

 
Please tick 
Mr  Mrs  Miss  Ms  Other title       
 (for example, Rev) 
 
Surname  First names 
             

 
 Please tick yes 
I am 18 years old or over 
 

 
 
Current postal  
address if  
different from 
premises 
address 

      

 
Post town       Post Code       

 
Daytime contact telephone number       
 
E-mail address 
(optional)  

      

 
 
(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 
 
Name and address 
      

Telephone number (if any) 
      
E-mail address (optional)  
      

 

2 

163



 
 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 
 
 Name and address 
 
Southwark Council – Trading Standards 
 
Bill Masini 
Trading Standards Officer 
Community Safety & Enforcement 
3rd Floor Hub 1 
PO Box 64529 
London SE1P 5LX 
 

Telephone number (if any) 
0207 525 2629 
E-mail address (optional)  
bill.masini@southwark.gov.uk 

  
 
This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 
 Please tick one or more boxes 

1) the prevention of crime and disorder  
2) public safety  
3) the prevention of public nuisance  
4) the protection of children from harm  

 
Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1) 
 
Prevention of Crime and disorder –  

• Duty evaded alcohol offered for sale – Customs and Excise Management Act 

1979 

• Duty evaded alcohol bearing counterfeit trade marks and “Duty stamp” – 

Trade Marks Act 1994 and Duty Stamp Regulations 2006 

• Offer to supply alcohol that cannot be legally sold – Consumer Protection 

from Unfair Trading Regulations 2008 

 

 
 

 
 

3 

164



Since 1 January 2007 it has been a requirement of The Duty Stamp Regulations 

2006 that retail bottles of alcohol of proof 30% ABV and higher and packaged in 

sizes of 35cl and larger have to carry a duty stamp to be legal for retail sale. The 

term “fake UK duty stamp” is used to describe a stamp that appears to comply with 

the design specification in the regulations but is not produced on behalf of HMRC or 

the product’s manufacturer or distributor. Where in the case of a manufacturer which 

has its trade mark on this label, the trade mark is also infringed because it has been 

used without the manufacturer’s consent and authorisation. This is an offence under 

The Trade Marks Act 1994. 

 

The term “duty diverted” is used to describe alcohol produced in the UK for export but 

illegally placed on the UK market. Spirits produced for export are not subject to duty 

and must not have labels incorporating duty stamps. Duty diversion takes place when 

alcohol for export is relabelled with fake labels bearing fake UK duty stamps.  

 

On 9 December 2016 Trading Standards carried out an inspection at the premise. 

This was for the purposes of inspecting goods for sale to ensure they complied with 

legislation enforced by Trading Standards and also to ensure there was also 

compliance with the conditions on the Premise Licence and The Licensing Act.  

 

On close examination a large quantity of what is commonly referred to as “duty 

diverted spirits” were on offer for sale. 

 

On the shelf at eye level behind the counter were: 

• 7 x 70cl bottles of Glen’s vodka (37.5% ABV). The rear labels on all the 

bottles had been replaced with a fake label bearing a fake UK duty stamp.  

On the lowest shelf behind the counter were: 

• 2 x 70cl bottles of Glen’s vodka (37.5% ABV). The rear labels on both bottles 

had been replaced with a fake label bearing a fake UK duty stamp. 

On another shelf were: 

• 4 x 70cl bottles of High Commissioner blended Scotch whisky (40% ABV). 

The rear labels on all the bottles had been replaced with a fake label bearing 

a fake UK duty stamp. 

On another shelf were: 

• 2 x 70cl bottles of High Commissioner blended Scotch whisky (40% ABV). 

The rear labels on both bottles had been replaced with a fake label bearing a 

fake UK duty stamp 

On another shelf were: 

4 

165



• 5 x 70cl bottles of Smirnoff vodka (37.5% ABV). The rear labels on all the 

bottles had been replaced with a fake label bearing a fake UK duty stamp 

On another shelf was: 

• 1 x 1 litre bottle of Smirnoff vodka (37.5% ABV). The rear label on the bottle 

had been replaced with a fake label bearing a fake UK duty stamp 

On another shelf were: 

• 2 x 70cl bottles of Bells blended Scotch whisky (40% ABV). The rear labels 

on both bottles had been replaced with a fake label bearing a fake UK duty 

stamp. 

 

In the basement of the shop was: 

• 1 box containing 6 x 1 litre bottles of Glen’s vodka. The box had the words 

“UK DUTY STAMP” printed on the side to indicate it was manufactured for 

the UK market. These words had been inked out with a black pen. This is an 

indication that an outer box of UK market stock was sold for export. The box 

also had evidence of having been opened and resealed with clear tape.(see 

photograph 1). On examination, it was evident the rear labels on bottles 

inside had been replaced with fake labels bearing fake UK duty stamp 

• 1 box containing 12 x 70cl bottles of Glen’s vodka. The box had the words 

“UK DUTY STAMP” printed on the side to indicate it was manufactured for 

the UK market. Once again these words had been inked out with a black pen. 

This is an indication that an outer box of UK market stock was sold for export. 

The box also had evidence of having been opened and resealed with clear 

tape. On examination, it was evident the rear labels on bottles inside had 

been replaced with fake labels bearing fake UK duty stamp. 

• 2 boxes each containing 6 x 70cl bottles of Bells blended Scotch whisky. The 

box had the words “UK DUTY STAMP” printed on the side to indicate it was 

manufactured for the UK market. Again, these words had been inked out with 

a black pen. This is an indication that an outer box of UK market stock was 

sold for export. The box also had evidence of having been opened and 

resealed with clear tape. On examination, it was evident the rear labels of 

bottles inside had been replaced with fake labels bearing fake UK duty stamp. 

The box was very tatty indicating to anyone exercising any diligence that 

there were questions to be asked about the box’s history (see photographs 2 

and 3). 

 

UK market alcohol sold for export is required to have any associated duty stamp 

5 

166



obliterated; this is done by exporters using a either non-removable round sticker or 

by the physical removal (scratching out) of the duty stamp. Having done this it is 

normal for the outer box to have the words “UK DUTY STAMP” obliterated, or 

simply not applied to the box in order to differentiate it from the regular UK market 

stock. This is relevant to the following stock also in the basement: 

• 2 boxes each containing 6 x 70cl bottles of Smirnoff vodka. The boxes did 

NOT have the words “UK DUTY STAMP” printed on the outer box of alcohol. 

This is an indication that it was manufactured for the export market. The outer 

boxes also had evidence of having been opened and resealed with clear 

tape. The rear labels of the bottles had been replaced with fake labels bearing 

a fake UK duty paid stamp. (see photographs 2 & 3) 

 

In total, seized for being non-duty paid duty diverted alcohol (and therefore illegal to 

be sold) were 

• 21 x 70cl bottles of Glen’s vodka 

• 17 x 70cl bottles of Smirnoff vodka 

• 14 x 70cl bottles of Bells whisky 

• 6 x 70cl bottles of High Commissioner whisky 

• 1 x 1 litre bottle of Smirnoff vodka 

• 6 x 1 litre bottles of Glen’s vodka 

 

The rate of alcohol duty on a 70cl 37.5% ABV spirit was £7.41 (£8.89 inc VAT) up to 

23 March 2015 and is currently £7.26 (£8.71 inc VAT). 

The rate of alcohol duty on a 70cl 40% ABV spirit was £7.90 (£9.48 inc VAT) up to 23 

March 2015 and is currently £7.74 (£9.29 inc VAT) 

The rate of alcohol duty on a 1 litre 37.5% ABV spirit was £10.58 (£12.70 inc VAT) up 

to 23 March 2015 and is currently £10.37 (£12.45 inc VAT) 

The rate of alcohol duty on a 1 litre 40% ABV spirit was £11.29 (£13.55 inc VAT) up 

to 23 March 2015 and is currently £11.06 (£13.27 inc VAT) 

 

The duty and VAT therefore evaded for these spirits (taking the current lower duty 

rates) totals: 

 

38 x 8.71 = £330.98 [Glens & Smirnoff 70cl bottles] 

20 x 9.29 = £185.80 [Bells & High Commissioner 70cl bottles] 

1 x 13.29 = £13.29 [1 litre Smirnoff] 

6 x 12.45 = £149.40 [1 litre Glen’s] 

6 

167



 

Total = £679.47 
These items were seized because it was not legal for them to be sold.  It is not clear 

how many other similar such items had been previously sold. Bottles that were 

legitimate, as can be seen in the photographs, were left in the shop  

 

Also offered for sale were so called super strength beers. These drinks are almost 

exclusively consumed by people who have a serious alcohol addiction problem and 

contain a high number of units of alcohol per can. These people often have mental 

health issues and live a chaotic lifestyle. This in turn can mean they become so 

called “street drinkers”. In doing so they may create a public nuisance and commit 

anti–social behaviour type offences such as aggressive begging and urinating in 

public places.   

The duty payable including VAT on these beers with an ABV of 8% sold in 500ml 

cans is £1.15. This premise had quantities of such beers (Tennents Super, Skol 

Super, Carlsberg Special Brew and Kestrel Super) priced for sale at £1.50 (see 

photograph 4); a difference of 35 pence to account for all the manufacturers’ costs, 

their transportation costs and profit, the wholesalers’ mark up and the retailer’s mark 

up. Suspicious these drinks were also subject to some form of evaded duty or other 

illegality, Trading Standards required the owner to produce his invoices for these 

drinks. Invoices that were later produced showing drinks of these brands purchased, 

indicated a price of £36.99 plus Vat (i.e £44.39) or £1.85 per can.  

 

The premise licence holder was required to produce his purchase invoices for the 

spirits seized and the super strength beers. It is an offence to fail to produce 

traceable invoices (alcohol falling within the definition of food) under The General 

Food Hygiene Regulations 2013. 

 

On 30 January 2017 Nuresh Kumar was interviewed under caution and in 

accordance with the requirements of The Police and Criminal Evidence Act. He 

brought with him purchase invoices stating these related to the products he had sold 

or had offered for sale, presumably expecting Trading Standards to simply accept 

these to be the complete records for his purchases. 

 

Those invoices indicated the following purchases in 2016 up to the date of the visit: 

• Glen’s vodka (70cl) -  60 bottles   

30 January 2016 – 12 

27 February 2016 – 18 

7 

168



21 October 2016 – 12 

19 November 2016 – 18 

 

• Smirnoff vodka (70cl) – 36 bottles 

20 February 2016 – 12 [price marked £13.79] 

21 February 2016 – 12 [price marked £13.79] 

19 November 2016 – 12 

 

• Bells whisky (70cl) – 12 bottles 

19 November 2016 – 12 

 

• High Commissioner whisky – 6 bottles 

19 November 2016 – 6 

 

• Smirnoff (1 litre) – 0 

 

• Glen’s (1 litre) – 6 bottles 

19 November 2016 – 6 

 

Taking into account items seized and legitimate products left in the shop, this 

indicated at face value that in 2016 Mr Kumar had sold very few of these brands. 

Trading Standards say he had sold a significant but unknown quantity because he 

bought the items seized (and sold an unknown number before the inspection) from 

an unauthorised source either knowing they were illegal in some form or simply 

closed his eyes to that fact. Trading Standards say it is important to note the time 

gaps between when legitimate drinks were purchased.  

For example the invoices show no 70cl bottles of Smirnoff appear to have been 

purchased over a 9 month period between 21 February and 19 November. 

The paperwork indicates no 70cl bottles of Glen’s vodka were bought over an eight 

month period between 27 February and 21 October.  

During a long interview, Mr Kumar stated that a man [purporting to be] from a Cash & 

Carry in East London had visited the shop around mid/late August. He had not 

previously heard of that Cash & Carry. He went on to say the man offered him the 

alcohol that was subsequently seized. The man had apparently shown him a 

business card from this Cash and Carry which Mr Kumar (who said he does all the 

buying for the business) took to confirm he was from this particular Cash and Carry. 

Apparently this man was unable to give an invoice or paperwork to show this Cash 

8 

169



and Carry to be the seller of these items and what Mr Kumar had paid (including VAT 

of course). Mr Kumar said he paid cash and the seller assured him that these items 

would be shown on a future invoice when he made future purchases from that 

business. Mr Kumar said he has bought goods from that Cash & Carry direct in later 

months but no one ever put these items on any future invoice.  

Mr Kumar was not able to say exactly what he bought from this person back in 

August 2016 and could offer no explanation as to how he was going to account for 

these items when completing his business records for the likes of HMRC. 

Asked how much he paid for the alcohol on that occasion he said it was “£300 to 

£400 or something like that”. It is not clear how much alcohol he bought but as stated 

earlier, the duty evaded alone of the seized drink came to nearly £700. Trading 

Standards say, assuming Mr Kumar has given a true account of how the alcohol 

came to be in the shop, that in itself indicates Mr Kumar must have known he was 

buying illegal alcohol. 

 

Throughout the interview, not unreasonably, Mr Kumar said he found the competition 

from the National supermarket chains near to him had made it very difficult for him to 

compete. With that in mind in relation to the “Super Strength Beers”, Trading 

Standards question the legitimacy of why he would then seek to sell these drinks for 

below his cost price and barely above the duty payable. Trading Standards does not 

accept an explanation that it is a “loss leader” in the same way a product such as 

milk or bread may be. People who buy these drinks typically just buy these and very 

little else. Trading Standards believe that whilst some product has been bought 

legitimately (with paperwork to demonstrate this), other such drinks have been 

acquired from a similar or indeed perhaps the same source as the spirits referred to 

in this review. Somewhere along the supply chain duty has been evaded. The 

paperwork for the legitimate product makes it appear that he has sold the drinks  

below cost whereas he has sold an unknown quantity for an unknown profit. 

 

 

Trading Standards say Mr Kumar has learnt nothing since the last review of his 

Premise Licence. The facts this time are very similar to when he offered for sale a 

significant quantity of counterfeit Jacobs Creek Wine. He was not able to 

demonstrate where he had bought that wine from and produced no paperwork. Once 

again he took the same gamble of buying from an unreliable and unknown source 

and failed to ensure he obtained proper paperwork on receipt of those goods. If  his 

account is true, he took the previously unknown “white van man” at face value by 

accepting him to be from a Cash and Carry somewhere in East London that, at the 

9 

170



time, he had never heard of. Mr Kumar is an experienced retailer and has previous 

dealings in counterfeit alcohol. Whilst this alcohol was not counterfeit, he did not 

know that at the time and took the risk of potentially exposing his customers to the 

dangers of cheap and dangerous alcohol. Trading Standards say it is through good 

luck that he did not buy alcohol that could have been highly injurious to health. 

 

Further, whilst never recommended to buy from such a source, Trading Standards 

say an experienced shopkeeper like Mr Kumar, could (and should) have carried out 

simple checks to prevent this problem. The cardboard boxes were either very tatty in 

appearance and/or the “UK DUTY STAMP” writing had been crossed through with a 

black marker pen thereby indicating something was illegal about the products. It 

would appear the purchase price was too tempting for him. 

 

In view of this matter and the previous Premise Licence review (which also included 

underage sales of alcohol to children), Trading Standards does not have confidence 

in Mr Kumar’s management of the business. The option of a change of DPS is not 

recommended because Mr Kumar acts as a sole trader, does all the buying and 

would still retain control.  The Licensing sub- committee is therefore invited to revoke 

the Premise Licence. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 
 

10 

171



 
Please tick yes 

Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before  
 
If yes please state the date of that application 

 May 2011 
 

 

 
 
If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state 
what they were and when you made them 
 
 
Protection of children from harm – 
 
Alcohol and cigarettes sold on two separate occasions over a 6 month period to 15 

year old children. Between the first and second sales the premise licence holder 

attended free training given by Southwark Trading Standards. The seller on both 

occasions was the Premise Licence Holder.  

 

Prevention of Crime and disorder –  
41 bottles of counterfeit Jacob’s Creek wine offered for sale. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11 

172



 
  

Please tick yes 
 I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible 

authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club 
premises certificate, as appropriate 

 

 I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements 
my application will be rejected 

 

       
 
IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON 
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
APPLICATION 
 
Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 3) 
 
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent 
(See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what 
capacity. 
 
Signature      
………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Date              
………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Capacity      Trading Standards Officer acting on behalf of Southwark Council 
………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for 
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5) 
      

Post town 
      

Post Code 
      

Telephone number (if any)        
If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
mail address (optional)       

 
Notes for Guidance  
 

1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 
2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems 

which are included in the grounds for review if available. 
3. The application form must be signed. 
4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf 

provided that they have actual authority to do so. 
5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this 

application. 
 

12 

173



174



175



176



177



From: Sharpe, Carolyn On Behalf Of Public Health Licensing 
Sent: Monday, April 03, 2017 4:20 PM 
To: Regen, Licensing 
Cc: Public Health Licensing 
Subject: RE: Consultation BEST FOOD AND WINE 171 Queens Road 

To whom it may concern: 

Re: Best Food and Wine 171 Queens Road,  London SE15 2ND 

This representation is made in respect of the following licensing objective(s): 

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 Prevention of public nuisance
 Public safety

On behalf of the Director of Health and Wellbeing (incorporating the role of Director of Public 
Health) for Southwark (a responsible authority under the Licensing Act 2003) I wish to 
express my concerns over the alleged issues with the management of the above premises. 
These include; duty evaded alcohol offered for sale, duty evaded alcohol bearing counterfeit 
trade marks and offer to supply alcohol that cannot be legally sold. The sale of counterfeit 
alcohol is a public health concern. Since the products may not be genuine their contents can 
potentially be very harmful.  

Public health fully supports this licence is reviewed by the Licensing Sub-Committee. 

If you have any further questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Yours faithfully, 

Carolyn Sharpe 
on behalf of Professor Kevin Fenton, Director of Health and Wellbeing (incorporating the role 
of Director of Public Health) 

                   APPENDIX B 178



  

 

 

 
The Licensing Unit Metropolitan Police Service 
Floor 3 Licensing Office 
160 Tooley Street Southwark Police Station, 
London 
SE1 2QH 

323 Borough High Street, 
LONDON, 
SE1 1JL 
 

 Tel:     020 7232 6756  
Email: SouthwarkLicensing@met.police.uk         

          
  Our 

reference: 
MD/21/2936 /17 

    
    Date: 4th April 2017. 

                                      
 

Re:- Best Food & Wine 171 Queens Road SE15 2ND 
 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
Police are in possession of an application from the Southwark’s Trading Standards Service for a 
review of the above premises licence under Section 51 of the licensing act 2003. 
 
Police have the following comments to make: 
 
The application details a number of incidents that give me cause for concern in relation to the 
premises and their dedication to promoting the licensing objectives. 
 
It is alleged that the premises have been offering Duty Evaded alcohol for sale contrary to 
Customs & Excise management Act 1979. 
 
Duty evade alcohol bearing counterfeit trade marks and “ Duty Stamp Trade Marks Act 1994 and 
Duty Stamp Regulations 2006 
 
Offering to to supply alcohol that cannot be legally sold –contrary to the consumer protection 
from unfair trading regulations 2008. 
 
These are all considered as acts of criminality which are being committed by an individual in 
whom we have trusted to operate a licensed premises in Southwark, and one that we would 
expect to be promoting the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objectives. 
 
Police fully support the application for review and would also recommend that the consideration 
is given to the revocation of the premises licence. The premises have already had ample 
opportunity to make good the issues identified through the stepped approach. I would have 
difficulty in believing any additional conditions would be adhered to. 
 
Yours Sincerely 
 
 
PC Ian Clements 362 MD 
Southwark Police Licensing Unit 
 

 

Working for a safer Southwark 

179



MEMO:  Licensing Unit 
 

 

To Licensing  Date  04 April 2017   

Copies  

From David Franklin Telephone 020 7525 5800 

Email david.franklin@southwark.gov.uk   

Subject Best Food & Wine 171 Queens Rd SE15 2ND 

I make this representation with regards to the review application of the premises licence submitted 
by the Trading Standards for Best Food & Wine 171 Queens Rd SE15 2ND. 
 
My representation is based on the licensing objective for the prevention of crime and disorder and 
prevention of public nuisance. 
 
The premises licence has been previously reviewed by the Licensing Sub Committee on 29 June 2011 
by application from the Trading Standards where the premises had failed an underage sales test 
cigarettes, failed a second underage sales test cigarettes and alcohol and officers found and seized 
41 bottles of counterfeit wine being offered for sale. I attached a copy of the notice of decision 
dated 29 June 2011. 
 
An inspection of the premises by a licensing officer on 28 March 2013 found three breaches of the 
premises licence and potential offences under section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003 as follows: 
 

1. 8AB - Staff training records with regards the ‘Challenge 25’ age identification policy 
established at the premises where not available for inspection.  

 
2. 81A - A register of refused sales with regards to the age identification policy established at 

the premises could not be produced.  
 

3. 836 - A personal Licence holder was not on the premises when licensable activities were 
being undertaken. 

 
A fourth potential offence of section 57 the licensing Act 2003 was also witnessed as follows: 
 

4. The Premises Licence (or certified copy) was not available at the premises. 
 
As a result a warning letter was sent to Mr Sawinder Singh and Mr Naresh Kumar and I submit a copy 
of the warning letter dated 31 March 2013. 
 
Mr Sawinder Singh and Mr Naresh Kumar have been joint premises licence holders since 2005 and 
Mr Naresh Kumar has been the DPS. 
 
The latest findings by the Trading Standards of; 

• Duty evaded alcohol offered for sale – Customs and Excise Management Act 1979 

180

mailto:david.franklin@southwark.gov.uk


• Duty evaded alcohol bearing counterfeit trade marks and “Duty stamp” – Trade Marks Act 
1994 and Duty Stamp Regulations 2006 

• Offer to supply alcohol that cannot be legally sold – Consumer Protection from Unfair 
Trading Regulations 2008 

 
Seem to show a continued pattern over the years of disregard for legislation created to control the 
sale of alcohol and I am therefore of the opinion that both Mr Sawinder Singh and Mr Naresh Kumar 
are not capable of running a licensed premises, additionally while the premises are owned by Mr 
Sawinder Singh and Mr Naresh Kumar and they play a significant part in the running of the premises 
and are the controlling factors and I would have not doubt that changing the DPS will not resolve 
this these issues. 
 
I therefore support the Trading Standards review and their request for revocation of the premises 
licence as the reasonable, appropriate and proportionate action to take.  
 
 
 
David Franklin 
Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority 

181



182



183



Licensing Unit – Environmental Health & Trading Standards, Hub 2, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, 

London, SE1 2QH Switchboard - 020 7525 5000  Website - www.southwark.gov.uk 

Strategic Director Environment & Housing - Deborah Collins  

Register to vote. Complete the forms delivered to your home. Information: 020 7525 7373 

 

 

Dear Mr Singh & Mr Kumar 
 
RE: THE LICENSING ACT 2003 – WARNING LETTER 
(BEST FOOD AND WINE, 171 Queens Road, London, SE15 2ND) 
 
 
On 28 March 2013  at 18:53 hours a Licensing Enforcement Officer carried out 
an inspection to determine whether the licensable activities at the above 
premises were carried out in accordance with your authorisation. 
 
In addition to the above, the Officer also considered ‘risk assessment’ criteria that 
would help determine the frequency of future inspections to your premises. 
 
During the inspection the officers witnessed the following:  

 
1. The Premises Licence (or certified copy) was not available at the premises. 

Breach of Section 57(3) of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 

If you have lost or damaged your Premises Licence you can order a new one 
by writing to the Licensing Unit at the address given below, and including a 
cheque (made payable to the London Borough of Southwark) or postal order 
for £10.50. 

 
If you have your Premises Licence (or certified copy) please ensure that it is 
kept at the premises to be made available to authorised officers should they 
request to see it. 
 

2. Staff training records with regards the ‘Challenge 25’ age identification policy 
established at the premises where not available for inspection. This is in 
breach of condition 8AB on the premises licence. 

 
3. A register of refused sales with regards to the age identification policy 

established at the premises could not be produced. This is in breach of 
condition 81A on the premise licence. 

 
 

 

 Mr Sawinder Singh &  
Mr Naresh Kumar 
BEST FOOD AND WINE 
171 Queens Road 
London 
SE15 2ND 
 

31 March 2013 
 

Licensing Unit 
Direct Line: 0207525 0396 
Direct Fax: 020 7525 5705 
 

184



Licensing Unit – Environmental Health & Trading Standards, Hub 2, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, 

London, SE1 2QH Switchboard - 020 7525 5000  Website - www.southwark.gov.uk 

Strategic Director Environment & Housing - Deborah Collins  

Register to vote. Complete the forms delivered to your home. Information: 020 7525 7373 

 

 

4. A personal Licence holder was not on the premises when licensable activities 
were being undertaken. This is in breach of condition 836 on the premises 
licence. 
 

Each of the matters listed above potentially constitutes a breach of the licence 
issued by the Council under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
You must ensure that licensable activities and hours of operation are in 
accordance with those listed on your premises licence. You must also ensure 
that the conditions attached to your licence are adhered to. A further visit will be 
made to check on these matters.  
 
If compliance is not achieved the Council may take formal action that may affect 
your license or lead to a prosecution. A person found guilty of an offence under 
the above section is liable on summary conviction to imprisonment for a term not 
exceeding 6 months or to a fine not exceeding £20,000. 
 
I hope this warning will ensure that compliance is achieved and no further action 
will be required. 
 
It was also noted that a Fire Risk Assessment had not been devised in regards to 
the premises. In accordance with the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 
2005 a Fire Risk Assessment is required in respect of the premises. Please find 
enclosed a booklet which gives guidance on how to undertake a Fire Risk 
Assessment.  
 
Whilst it is not an offence under the Licensing Act 2003 not to have a Fire Risk 
Assessment, it is an offence under the Regulatory Reform (Fire Order) 2005. 
Please submit a Fire Risk Assessment to this office within 14 days. 
 
If I do not receive a copy of the assessment within fourteen days from the date of 
this letter I will be notifying the Fire Brigade of this offence 
 
Thank you in anticipation of your co-operation.  Should you wish to discuss this 
matter with a Licensing Enforcement Officer Please contact us by email at 
licensing@southwark.gov.uk or by telephone on 020 7525 0396 between the 
hours of 9.00 and 17.00, Monday to Friday. Alternatively you can write or visit us 
at the above address. 
 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
Jayne Tear 
Principal Licensing Officer 
Licensing@southwark.gov.uk 
 
ENC: Age ID Training pack, refusal log, signage & Fire Risak Assessment advice 
booklet 
 
 

 
 

185



APPENDIX C 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  
 
 
 

Premises licence number                               834717 
  

Part 1 - Premises details  
  
Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description  
 
BEST FOOD AND WINE 
171 Queens Road 
London 
SE15 2ND 
 
Ordnance survey map reference (if applicable), 
176749535067 
Post town  
London 

Post code  
SE15 2ND 

Telephone number  
020 7277 5177 
 
Where the licence is time limited the dates  
   

 
Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
 
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises 

 
The opening hours of the premises  
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 
 
 
Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies 
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises 

  
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

For any non standard timings see Annex 2 of the full premises licence 
 
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises 
Monday              08:00 - 23:00 
Tuesday             08:00 - 23:00 
Wednesday        08:00 - 23:00 

Environmental Health & Trading Standards 
Licensing Unit 

Chaplin Centre 
Thurlow Street 

London SE17 2DG 

Page 1 of 7 

186



Thursday            08:00 - 23:00 
Friday                 08:00 - 23:00 
Saturday             08:00 - 23:00 
Sunday               10:00 - 22:30 

Page 2 of 7 

187



Part 2  
  
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises 
licence  
Sawindar Sandhu Singh 
25 Newlyn Road 
Welling 
Kent 
DA16 3LH 
07956 127 681 

Naresh Kumar 
255 Northumberland Avenue 
Welling 
Kent 
DA16 2QF 
07957 621 148 

 

 
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) 

 
Name, address and  telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises 
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol  
 
Naresh Kumar 
255 Northumberland Avenue 
Welling 
Kent 
DA16 2AF 
 
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises 
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol  
Licence No. 05/01358 
Authority L B Bexley  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Licence Issue date 21/07/2011 
  
 
 

…...………………………………. 
Community Safety Enforcement 

Business Unit Manger 
Chaplin Centre 
Thurlow Street 

London SE17 2DG  
020 7525 5748 

licensing@southwark.gov.uk
 

Page 3 of 7 

188



Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions  
 

100 No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence - 

a.At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect 

of the Premises Licence; or 

b.At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a 

Personal   Licence or h is Personal Licence is suspended. 

101 Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or 

authorised by, a person who holds a Personal Licence. 

488 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder 

shall ensure that an age verification policy applies to the premises 

in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

(2). The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible 

person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be 

specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served 

alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a 

holographic mark. 

 

Page 4 of 7 

189



 Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule  
  
124 Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied except during the permitted 

hours. In this condition the permitted hours means: 

a.On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, 8.00.a.m. to 11.00.p.m. 

b.On Sundays, other than Christmas Day, 10.00.a.m. to 10.30.p.m. 

c.On  Christmas day, 12 noon to 3.00.p.m. and 7.00.p.m. to 10.30.p.m. 

d.On Good Friday, 8.00.a.m. to 10.30.p.m. 

The above restrictions do not prohibit: 

i)During the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of 

the alcohol from the premises, unl ess the alcohol is supplied or 

taken in an open vessel 

ii)The ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the 

dispatch by the vendor of the alcohol so ordered; 

iii)The sale of alcohol to a trader or club for the purposes of the 

trade or club ; 

iv)The sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a 

canteen in which the sale or supply of alcohol is carried out under 

the authority of the Secretary of State or an authorised mess of 

members of Her Majesty's naval, military or air forces . 

125 Alcohol shall not be sold in an open container or be consumed in the 

licensed premises. 

127 Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied unless it is paid for before or 

at the time when it is sold or supplied, except alcohol sold or supplied: 

a.With and for consumption at a meal supplied at the same time, 

consumed with the meal and paid for together w ith the meal; 

b.For consumption by a person residing in the premises or his guest 

and paid for together with his accommodation; 

c.To a canteen or mess. 

 

Page 5 of 7 

190



Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority   
 
8AA The premises shall operate an age check 'Challenge 25' policy whereby 

customers purchasing alcohol who look or appear to be under 25 years 

of age will be asked for an approved form of proof of age to verify 

their age. Approved forms shall include a driving licence, passport or 

a PASS approved proof of age card such as the Southwark Proof of Age 

(SPA) card. 

8AB All staff involved in the sale of alcohol shall be trained in the age 

check 'Challenge 25' policy. A record of their training, including the 

dates that each member of staff is trained, shall be available for 

inspection at the premises on request by the Council's authorised 

officers or the Police. 

8AC Age check or 'Challenge 25' signage shall be displayed at entrances to 

the premises, areas where alcohol is displayed for sale and at points 

of sale to inform customers that an age check 'Challenge 25' policy 

applies and proof of age may be required. 

8AI A register of refused sales of alcohol and cigarettes sales, which is clearly marked with the details of the 

premises, address and name of licence holder shall be maintained in order to demonstrate effective 

operation of the policy. The register shall be available for inspection at the premises on request by the 

Council's authorised officers or the Police 

836 A personal licence holder shall be on the premises at all times licensable activities are undertaken. 

 

Page 6 of 7 

191



Annex 4 - Plans - Attached 

  
 
 
Licence No. 834717 

Plan No. N/A 

Plan Date August 2005 

 
 
 

Page 7 of 7 

192



NOTICE OF POSTPONEMENT 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE – 4 MAY 2017  

LICENSING ACT 2003: BEST FOOD & WINE, 171 QUEENS ROAD, LONDON SE15 2ND 

1. Adjournment
i. The review application submitted by Trading Standards (dated 7 March 2017) be

postponed to 10.00 am on 12 June 2017.
ii. That time be extended to determine the review application pursuant to regulation 11 of

the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 2005.

2. Reasons
A transfer of the premises licence and designated premises supervisor was received on 3
May 2017.  These applications have a direct and immediate impact on the review application.
Should the Metropolitan Police Service submit a representation objecting to the applications,
then they are to be heard on 12 June 2017 in advance of the review application in respect of
the same premises.

3. Direction
The Licensing Sub-Committee directs that the following documentation be made available at
the hearing on 12 June 2017:
a. Lease between Naresh Kumar, Paramjit Kuar and Ajanthini Arularajah

Geethanjali Arularajah in respect of 171 Queens Road, SE15 2ND or any
subsequent lease to these premises.

b. Any Lease registration documents.
c. Any Business registration documents.
d. Any other documents regarding the ownership of 171 Queens Road, SE15

2ND.

It is also recommended that should any subsequent transfer application for the premises licence 
or application to specify a new designated premises supervisor be received, that they should be 
considered on 12 June 2017.  

Issued by the Constitutional Team on behalf of the Director of Legal Services 

Date: 4 May 2017 

APPENDIX D
193



                                                                            APPENDIX E  194



195



196



APPENDIX F197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



                                                                    APPENDIX G 222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



APPENDIX H
238



 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) MUNICIPAL YEAR 2017-18

NOTE: Original held by Constitutional Team; all amendments/queries to 
Andrew Weir - Tel: 020 7525 7222

Name No of 
copies

Name No of 
copies

Members

Councillor Renata Hamvas (Chair)
Councillor Linforth-Hall
Councillor Lorraine Lauder MBE

Reserve

Councillor Sandra Rhule

1
1
1

By email

Officers

Debra Allday, legal team
Andrew Heron, licensing team
Wesley Mcarthur, licensing team
Jayne Tear, licensing team
Carolyn Sharpe, public health team

Andrew Weir (spares)                      

Total printed copies: 

Dated:  2 June 2017

1
     1

1
     1

6

13


	Agenda
	5 Licensing Act 2003: Zia Lucia, 35-37 Tower Bridge Road, London SE1 4TL
	Appendix A: Application for a  premises licence
	Appendix B: Conciliated representations submitted by responsible authorities
	Appendix C: Representations submitted by other persons
	Appendix D:  Map of the local area

	6 Licensing Act 2003: Best Food & Wine, 171 Queens Road, London SE15 2ND - Transfer Application
	Appendix A: Copy of the transfer application
	Appendix B: Police objection
	Appendix C: Copy of the premises licence
	Premises licence number                              
	Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 
	Post code 
	Telephone number 
	Where the licence is time limited the dates 
	Licensable activities authorised by the licence
	The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

	Part 1 - Premises details
	Part 2

	Appendix D: Trading standards review application
	Best Food & Wine (858025) - appendix A - review application
	Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
	Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)
	Post Code
	     
	Daytime contact telephone number
	     
	0207 525 2629
	Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 3)

	Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.
	Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5)

	Post Code
	Telephone number (if any)       

	Best Food & Wine (858025) - appendix A - review application photo's

	Appendix E: Notice of postponement of hearing from licensing sub-committee on 4 May 2017
	Appendix F: Submission from legal representative acting on behalf of transfer applicant
	Appendix G: Lease
	Appendix H: Agreement
	Appendix I: Copy of change of designated premises supervisor application
	Appendix J: Map

	7 Licensing Act 2003: Best Food and Wine, 171 Queens Road, London SE15 2ND - Review
	Appendix A: Copy of the review application
	Best Food & Wine (858025) - appendix A - review application
	Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
	Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)
	Post Code
	     
	Daytime contact telephone number
	     
	0207 525 2629
	Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 3)

	Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.
	Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5)

	Post Code
	Telephone number (if any)       

	Best Food & Wine (858025) - appendix A - review application photo's

	Appendix B: Copies of the representations submitted by responsible authorities
	Best Food & Wine (858025) - appendix C - representations 1
	From: Sharpe, Carolyn On Behalf Of Public Health Licensing Sent: Monday, April 03, 2017 4:20 PM To: Regen, Licensing Cc: Public Health Licensing Subject: RE: Consultation BEST FOOD AND WINE 171 Queens Road

	Best Food & Wine (858025) - appendix C - representations 2
	Re:- Best Food & Wine 171 Queens Road SE15 2ND

	Best Food & Wine (858025) - appendix C - representations 3
	MEMO:  Licensing Unit

	Best Food & Wine (858025) - appendix C - representations 3-2
	Best Food & Wine (858025) - appendix C - representations 3-3

	Appendix C: Copy of the premises licence
	Premises licence number                              
	Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 
	Post code 
	Telephone number 
	Where the licence is time limited the dates 
	Licensable activities authorised by the licence
	The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

	Part 1 - Premises details
	Part 2

	Appendix D: Copy of the postponement notice
	Appendix E: Copy of letter from Pushparani Arulrajah’s legal advisor
	Appendix F: Copy of the lease
	Appendix G: Copy of the agreement to transfer the business
	Appendix H: Map

	 



